CITY OF BROOKS
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – APRIL 19, 2021
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
4:30 P.M.
AGENDA
1.

CALL TO ORDER

DR. K. FOLTON RETIREMENT RECOGNITION
2.

AGENDA
a)
b)

3.

Items to add/delete from the agenda
Adoption of agenda

MINUTES
a)

Regular Council Meeting – April 5, 2021

4.

BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF MINUTES

5.

RCMP REPORT – MARCH 2021

6.

CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION
a)

Update

-

Council Conferences and/or Workshops

b)

Notes

-

Council Committee – April 13, 2021

7.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

8.

BUSINESS
a)

Proclamation – National Emergency Preparedness Week (see memo
dated April 12, 2021 from Fire Chief)

b)

Proclamation – Asian Heritage Month (see memo dated April 14, 2021
from HR/Inclusion Advisor)
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9.

c)

Proclamation – Mental Health Week Month (see memo dated April 14,
2021 from HR/Inclusion Advisor)

d)

2020 Financial Statements (see attachments)

e)

Purchasing Policy No. L-001-014(E) (see memo dated April 14, 2021 from
Manager of Finance)

f)

Financial Variance Report (see memo dated April 13, 2021 from Manager
of Finance)

g)

Offsite Levy Report and By-law RFP (see memo dated April 13, 2021
from Manager of Planning and Development)

h)

COVID-19 Updates and Initiatives and Other Updates

BYLAWS
a)

Bylaw 21/09 – Portable Sign Bylaw

10.

QUESTIONS FROM THE MEDIA

11.

BUSINESS – IN CAMERA
a)

12.

HR Report Pursuant to Section 17 of FOIP

ADJOURNMENT

RECOMMENDATIONS
April 19, 2021
REFER TO:
8. (a)

RECOMMENDATION
That May 2 – 8, 2021 be hereby proclaimed as “National Emergency
Preparedness Week” in the City of Brooks.

(b)

That May 2021 be hereby proclaimed as “Asian Heritage Month” in
the City of Brooks.

(c)

That May 3 – 9, 2021 be hereby proclaimed as “Mental Health Week” in
the City of Brooks.

(d)

That Council adopt the City of Brooks Financial Statements year ending
December 31, 2020.

(e)

That Policy No. L-001-014(E) entitled Purchasing Policy be hereby
approved.

(f)

That the April 2021 Financial Variance Report be accepted as
information.

(g)

That Council award the Offsite Levy Report and Bylaw Project to
Corvus Business Advisors in the amount of $60,102 excluding GST.

(h)

That the COVID-19 Updates and Initiatives and Other Updates be
accepted as information.

9. (a)

That Bylaw No. 21/09, being a Bylaw of the City of Brooks, in the
Province of Alberta, to provide standards and regulations for outdoor
portable advertising, be introduced and read a first time.
That Bylaw 21/09 be read a second time.
That Bylaw 21/09 be given three readings at this meeting.
That Bylaw No. 21/09, being a Bylaw of the City of Brooks, in the
Province of Alberta, to provide standards and regulations for outdoor
portable advertising, be read a third time and adopted.

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF THE
CITY OF BROOKS HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AND VIA
VIDEOCONFERENCE AT THE CITY OFFICE ON APRIL 5, 2021
AT 4:30 P.M.
_______________________________________________________________________
PRESENT:

Mayor Barry Morishita
Councillor Dan Klein
Councillor Bill Prentice
Councillor Norm Gerestein
Councillor Joel Goodnough
Councillor Jon Nesbitt
Councillor John Petrie

STAFF:

Alan Martens, CAO
Amanda Peterson, Deputy CAO
Amy Rommens, Manager, Administration
Bruce Thiessen, IT Supervisor
Libin Joseph, Manager, Human Resources
Kevin Swanson, Fire Chief
Jenny Wallace, Executive Assistant/Recording Secretary

OTHERS IN
ATTENDANCE:

S. Stanway, Brooks Bulletin

CALL TO
ORDER:

Mayor Barry Morishita called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m.
Alan Martens, CAO, recognized Libin Joseph’s accomplishment in
obtaining his Chartered Professional in Human Resources
Designation.
Libin Joseph introduced Jenny Wallace, the new Executive
Assistant for the City of Brooks.
AGENDA

21/100

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR PRENTICE that “the agenda be
adopted”.
MOTION CARRIED
MINUTES

21/101

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR GOODNOUGH that “the Minutes from
the Regular Council Meeting held March 15, 2021 be approved”.
MOTION CARRIED

Regular Council Meeting Minutes
April 5, 2021
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BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF MINUTES
There was no business arising out of the Minutes.
CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION
21/102

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR PRENTICE that “the following items of
correspondence be received as information:
a)

Update

-

Council Conference and/or
Workshops

b)

Notes

-

Council Committee – March 23,
2021
MOTION CARRIED

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
21/103

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR GOODNOUGH that “the Accounts
Payable listing presented in the amount of three million, one
hundred forty-six thousand, four hundred five dollars and fifty-six
cents ($3,146,405.56) be hereby approved”.
MOTION CARRIED
BUSINESS
Proclamation for National Demin Day
___________________________________________________

21/104

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR KLEIN that “May 15, 2021 be hereby
proclaimed as “National Denim Day” in the City of Brooks”.
MOTION CARRIED
Proclamation for Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness
Month
___________________________________________________

21/105

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR GERESTEIN that “May 2021 be hereby
proclaimed as “Melanoma and Skin Cancer Awareness Month” in
the City of Brooks”.
MOTION CARRIED
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Proclamation for National Volunteer Week
___________________________________________________
21/106

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR PETRIE that “April 18 – 24, 2021 be
hereby proclaimed as “National Volunteer Week” in the City of
Brooks”.
MOTION CARRIED
Proclamation for Catholic Education Week
___________________________________________________

21/107

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR GERESTEIN that “May 10 – 14, 2021
be hereby proclaimed as “Catholic Education Week” in the City of
Brooks”.
MOTION CARRIED
Proclamation for National Public Safety Telecommunicators
Week
___________________________________________________

21/108

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR NESBITT that “April 11 – 17, 2021 be
hereby proclaimed as “National Public Safety Telecommunicators
Week” in the City of Brooks”.
MOTION CARRIED
COVID-19 Updates and Initiatives and Other Updates
_____________________________________________________

21/109

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR KLEIN that “the COVID-19 Updates
and Initiatives and Other Updates be accepted as information”.
MOTION CARRIED
PUBLIC HEARING – BYLAW 21/08
-

-

Mayor Morishita called the hearing to order at 5:00 p.m.
A. Rommens explained that the Bylaw is to set a rate for the
business tax levy on businesses located in the Brooks Town
Centre Revitalization Zone. A. Rommens noted that the Bylaw
received first reading, and that the notices were sent with the
notice also posted on the City’s Facebook. A. Rommens added
that no comments were received either in favour or opposition of
the Bylaw.
Persons speaking in favour of the proposed Bylaw – None
present.
Persons speaking in opposition of the proposed Bylaw – None
present.

Regular Council Meeting Minutes
April 5, 2021
-
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Mayor Morishita adjourned the hearing at 5:02 p.m.
MOTION CARRIED

BYLAWS
Bylaw 21/08 – BRZ Mill Rate Bylaw
21/110

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR PETRIE that “Bylaw No. 21/08
be read a second time”.
MOTION CARRIED

21/111

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR PRENTICE that “Bylaw No. 21/08,
being a Bylaw of the City of Brooks in the Province of Alberta, to set
a rate for the business tax levy on businesses located in the Brooks
Town Centre Revitalization Zone be read a third time and adopted”.
MOTION CARRIED

21/112

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR GERESTEIN that “Council cancel the
2021 BRZ Taxes once they are levied”.
MOTION CARRIED
ADJOURNMENT

21/113

MOVED BY COUNCILLOR KLEIN that “the meeting adjourn at
5:04 p.m.”
MOTION CARRIED

_________________________________
Mayor
_________________________________
Chief Administrative Officer

BROOKS RCMP DETACHMENT
City of Brooks Report
April 2021
The attached statistical report has been generated from the PROS Database (Police Reporting
& Occurrence System).

Apr 14/21

In March 2021, Brooks Detachment members responded to 309 municipal calls
for service. A total of 26 prisoners were lodged in the Detachment Cells. There
were 122 municipal criminal records completed.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS – Miscellaneous calls from March 2021

‐ Mar. 23, 2021 – A staff member from a local Building Centre reported a
female who purchased tools on two separate occasions, using someone
else’s account without consent to make the purchase. Female identified
and later arrested and released. Search warrant recovered numerous
property obtained by crime. Charges laid.
‐ Mar. 13, 2021 – Brooks RCMP responded to a complaint regarding a male
coming into the complainant’s residence and assaulting her fiancé. The
victim had been struck with a crowbar to the left side of his head and
treated at the hospital. Suspect Located at his residence and arrested
without incident. Charges laid.
‐ Mar. 11, 2021 – Peace Officer advised he was roadside with GMC Yukon.
Vehicle occupied by the registered owner and the suspect. Members
attended to assist and the suspect forcibly removed the owner from vehicle
before fleeing from members; the victim was dragged nearly 50m by fleeing
vehicle. Members pursued temporarily before having pursuit called off. The
victim was taken to Brooks Hospital with minor injuries. Warrant obtained
for the suspect for Robbery, Dangerous Operation and Flight. Arrested by
EPS. Matter before the courts.

Staffing
‐ Cst. Kyle Collins has recently arrived from Depot and has begun working.

‐ Cst. James LOKEN is a new member coming from Depot. Anticipated arrival
early May.
‐ Cst. Cory GAUDON will be arriving from Depot in early June.
‐ The acting Commander, along with Southern Alberta District continue to
work with staffing to ensure that we are getting replacements in a timely
manner.
‐ A member who had been selected to transfer out has voluntarily cancelled
their transfer and will be staying with us for a while longer.
‐ Our GIS Constable position has been advertised externally and several
members have submitted CVs for the position.

Respectfully prepared and submitted by:
Sgt. Gord YETMAN
Detachment Commander
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Brooks Municipal Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

April 8, 2021
2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

% Change
2017 - 2021

% Change
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/per Year

Homicides & Offences Related to Death

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Robbery

3

0

2

0

0

-100%

N/A

-0.6

Sexual Assaults

4

7

13

8

5

25%

-38%

0.3

Other Sexual Offences

1

9

5

4

2

100%

-50%

-0.3

Assault

50

42

56

52

42

-16%

-19%

-0.6

Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction

1

5

2

2

1

0%

-50%

-0.3

Extortion

0

1

1

2

1

N/A

-50%

0.3

Criminal Harassment

4

8

23

18

10

150%

-44%

2.2

Uttering Threats

14

15

34

24

23

64%

-4%

2.7

TOTAL PERSONS

77

87

136

110

84

9%

-24%

3.7

Break & Enter

12

18

11

13

14

17%

8%

-0.1

Theft of Motor Vehicle

9

10

9

8

9

0%

13%

-0.2

Theft Over $5,000

2

0

2

5

0

-100%

-100%

0.1

Theft Under $5,000

43

63

37

29

36

-16%

24%

-4.8

Possn Stn Goods

8

13

11

7

5

-38%

-29%

-1.2

Fraud

25

16

33

35

23

-8%

-34%

1.5

Arson

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Mischief - Damage To Property

0

0

0

32

40

N/A

25%

11.2

Mischief - Other

43

50

38

9

24

-44%

167%

-7.9

142

170

141

138

151

6%

9%

-1.4

Offensive Weapons

2

4

11

2

1

-50%

-50%

-0.4

Disturbing the peace

16

17

21

13

13

-19%

0%

-1.0

Fail to Comply & Breaches

27

52

79

44

71

163%

61%

8.0

OTHER CRIMINAL CODE

12

23

16

15

7

-42%

-53%

-1.8

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE

57

96

127

74

92

61%

24%

4.8

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

276

353

404

322

327

18%

2%

7.1

CATEGORY

TOTAL PROPERTY

Trend

Brooks Municipal Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

April 8, 2021
2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

% Change
2017 - 2021

% Change
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/per Year

Drug Enforcement - Production

1

0

0

0

0

-100%

N/A

-0.2

Drug Enforcement - Possession

9

5

2

3

2

-78%

-33%

-1.6

Drug Enforcement - Trafficking

8

6

0

1

0

-100%

-100%

-2.1

Drug Enforcement - Other

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

18

11

2

4

2

-89%

-50%

-3.9

Cannabis Enforcement

0

0

0

2

0

N/A

-100%

0.2

Federal - General

1

7

1

1

0

-100%

-100%

-0.8

TOTAL FEDERAL

19

18

3

7

2

-89%

-71%

-4.5

Liquor Act

9

17

8

8

3

-67%

-63%

-2.1

Cannabis Act

0

0

0

2

0

N/A

-100%

0.2

Mental Health Act

17

32

24

34

37

118%

9%

4.2

Other Provincial Stats

38

66

42

40

64

68%

60%

2.6

64

115

74

84

104

63%

24%

4.9

Municipal By-laws Traffic

4

5

2

1

1

-75%

0%

-1.0

Municipal By-laws

29

90

27

18

20

-31%

11%

-9.0

33

95

29

19

21

-36%

11%

-10.0

Fatals

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Injury MVC

2

4

4

1

1

-50%

0%

-0.5

Property Damage MVC (Reportable)

98

99

98

82

45

-54%

-45%

-12.3

Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable)

10

15

10

9

4

-60%

-56%

-1.8

110

118

112

92

50

-55%

-46%

-14.6

Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov)

0

0

0

0

4

N/A

N/A

0.8

Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov)

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

528

344

628

790

143

-73%

-82%

-32.4

Other Traffic

4

7

1

7

4

0%

-43%

0.0

Criminal Code Traffic

17

20

21

23

11

-35%

-52%

-0.9

False Alarms

71

117

22

10

28

-61%

180%

-19.3

False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act

16

25

19

13

6

-63%

-54%

-3.2

Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property

29

37

36

36

49

69%

36%

3.9

Persons Reported Missing

5

10

11

7

7

40%

0%

0.1

Search Warrants

1

1

1

1

1

0%

0%

0.0

Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported)

47

80

90

103

113

140%

10%

15.5

Form 10 (MHA) (Reported)

0

0

0

8

9

N/A

13%

2.6

CATEGORY

Total Drugs

Total Provincial Stats

Total Municipal

TOTAL MVC

Total Provincial Traffic

Trend

Common Police Activities

Brooks Municipal Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

April 8, 2021
2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

% Change
2017 - 2021

% Change
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/per Year

Homicides & Offences Related to Death

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Robbery

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Sexual Assaults

1

2

7

2

2

100%

0%

0.2

Other Sexual Offences

0

4

0

2

0

N/A

-100%

-0.2

Assault

17

18

16

17

16

-6%

-6%

-0.3

Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction

0

2

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

-0.2

Extortion

0

0

0

1

1

N/A

0%

0.3

Criminal Harassment

3

5

9

5

4

33%

-20%

0.2

Uttering Threats

1

4

11

6

6

500%

0%

1.2

TOTAL PERSONS

22

35

43

33

29

32%

-12%

1.2

Break & Enter

4

6

5

4

1

-75%

-75%

-0.8

Theft of Motor Vehicle

5

3

7

5

2

-60%

-60%

-0.4

Theft Over $5,000

0

0

1

1

0

N/A

-100%

0.1

Theft Under $5,000

16

23

20

14

11

-31%

-21%

-1.9

Possn Stn Goods

5

3

7

3

1

-80%

-67%

-0.8

Fraud

10

6

12

8

13

30%

63%

0.8

Arson

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Mischief - Damage To Property

0

0

0

7

9

N/A

29%

2.5

Mischief - Other

14

14

15

3

11

-21%

267%

-1.7

54

55

67

45

48

-11%

7%

-2.2

Offensive Weapons

1

3

3

0

0

-100%

N/A

-0.5

Disturbing the peace

7

6

6

5

5

-29%

0%

-0.5

Fail to Comply & Breaches

10

16

21

15

16

60%

7%

1.1

OTHER CRIMINAL CODE

3

16

5

7

1

-67%

-86%

-1.3

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE

21

41

35

27

22

5%

-19%

-1.2

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE

97

131

145

105

99

2%

-6%

-2.2

CATEGORY

TOTAL PROPERTY

Trend

Brooks Municipal Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

April 8, 2021
2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

% Change
2017 - 2021

% Change
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/per Year

Drug Enforcement - Production

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Drug Enforcement - Possession

2

3

1

3

0

-100%

-100%

-0.4

Drug Enforcement - Trafficking

7

1

0

0

0

-100%

N/A

-1.5

Drug Enforcement - Other

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

9

4

1

3

0

-100%

-100%

-1.9

Cannabis Enforcement

0

0

0

1

0

N/A

-100%

0.1

Federal - General

0

3

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

-0.3

TOTAL FEDERAL

9

7

1

4

0

-100%

-100%

-2.1

Liquor Act

4

6

2

3

2

-50%

-33%

-0.7

Cannabis Act

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Mental Health Act

6

13

4

19

7

17%

-63%

0.8

Other Provincial Stats

15

20

15

15

18

20%

20%

0.1

25

39

21

37

27

8%

-27%

0.2

Municipal By-laws Traffic

1

0

0

0

0

-100%

N/A

-0.2

Municipal By-laws

12

35

5

8

9

-25%

13%

-3.3

13

35

5

8

9

-31%

13%

-3.5

Fatals

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

Injury MVC

0

4

4

0

0

N/A

N/A

-0.4

Property Damage MVC (Reportable)

33

24

26

22

16

-52%

-27%

-3.6

Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable)

3

5

1

2

0

-100%

-100%

-0.9

36

33

31

24

16

-56%

-33%

-4.9

Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov)

0

0

0

0

1

N/A

N/A

0.2

Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov)

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0.0

256

131

185

198

43

-83%

-78%

-35.9

Other Traffic

3

5

1

2

3

0%

50%

-0.3

Criminal Code Traffic

7

7

8

7

4

-43%

-43%

-0.6

False Alarms

24

34

10

4

12

-50%

200%

-5.4

False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act

10

8

6

3

2

-80%

-33%

-2.1

Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property

15

15

13

16

21

40%

31%

1.3

Persons Reported Missing

1

7

7

2

4

300%

100%

0.1

Search Warrants

0

1

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

-0.1

Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported)

14

20

34

33

32

129%

-3%

4.9

Form 10 (MHA) (Reported)

0

0

0

5

1

N/A

-80%

0.7

CATEGORY

Total Drugs

Total Provincial Stats

Total Municipal

TOTAL MVC

Total Provincial Traffic

Trend

Common Police Activities

Brooks Municipal Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)
January to March: 2017 - 2021
April 8, 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"
Category

Trend

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

FLAG

9

10

9

8

9

Within Norm

Auto

0

2

1

1

2

Issue

Truck

2

3

3

4

4

Issue

SUV

2

1

0

1

2

Issue

Van

0

0

1

0

0

Within Norm

Motorcycle

0

0

1

0

0

Within Norm

Other

0

3

2

1

1

Within Norm

Take Auto without Consent

5

1

1

1

0

Within Norm

12

18

11

13

14

Within Norm

Business

2

7

5

8

8

Within Norm

Residence

9

7

4

2

4

Within Norm

Cottage or Seasonal Residence

0

0

0

0

0

Within Norm

Other

1

1

0

2

1

Within Norm

45

63

39

34

36

Within Norm

Theft from a motor vehicle

6

20

6

10

22

Issue

Shoplifting

9

6

9

5

1

Within Norm

Mail Theft (includes all Mail offences)

0

2

1

0

0

Within Norm

Theft of bicycle

1

0

0

0

1

Issue

Other Theft

29

35

23

19

12

Within Norm

Mischief To Property

43

50

38

41

64

Issue

Suspicious Person/ Vehicle/ Property

29

37

36

36

49

Issue

Fail to Comply/Breach

27

52

79

44

71

Within Norm

Wellbeing Check

15

14

20

29

26

Within Norm

Mental Health Act

17

32

24

34

37

Issue

False Alarms

71

117

22

10

28

Within Norm

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

FLAG

Roadside Suspensions - alcohol related - No grounds to charge*

2

1

0

3

3

Issue

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations*

4

74

49

5

1

Within Norm

Speeding Violations*

4

4

2

9

3

Within Norm

Intersection Related Violations*

9

18

85

179

10

Within Norm

285

112

139

186

45

Within Norm

Pursuits**

1

1

0

0

2

Issue

Other CC Traffic**

3

3

6

3

3

Within Norm

Theft Motor Vehicle (Total)

Break and Enter (Total)*

Theft Over & Under $5,000 (Total)

Traffic

Other Non-Moving Violation*

Trend

*"Actual" **"Reported"

Categories flagged with "Issue" only indicate that the current number of offences are higher the statistical norm based on previous years.

Brooks Municipal Detachment - Break and Enters (includes unlawfully in a dwelling place)
April 8, 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

2020
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Actuals

3

6

4

2

4

3

9

4

8

11

4

8

Running Total

3

9

13

15

19

22

31

35

43

54

58

66

13

Quarter

9

21

23

2021
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Actuals

9

4

1

Running Total

9

13

14

14

Quarter
Year over Year
% Change

Apr

200%

44%

May

Jun

Jul

TBD

Aug

Sep

Oct

TBD

Nov

Dec

TBD

8%

Brooks Municipal Detachment - Theft of Motor Vehicles (includes taking without consent)
April 8, 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

2020
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Actuals

3

0

5

0

1

1

3

1

2

7

4

1

Running Total

3

3

8

8

9

10

13

14

16

23

27

28

8

Quarter

2

6

12

2021
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Actuals

3

4

2

Running Total

3

7

9

9

Quarter
Year over Year
% Change

0%

133%

Apr

May

TBD
13%

Jun

Jul

Aug

TBD

Sep

Oct

Nov

TBD

Dec

Brooks Municipal Detachment - Theft Under $5,000
April 8, 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

2020
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Actuals

6

9

14

14

11

5

17

12

9

10

6

2

Running Total

6

15

29

43

54

59

76

88

97

107

113

115

29

Quarter

30

38

18

2021
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Actuals

17

8

11

Running Total

17

25

36

36

Quarter
Year over Year
% Change

Apr

183%

67%

May

Jun

Jul

TBD

Aug

Sep

Oct

TBD

Nov

Dec

TBD

24%

Brooks Municipal Detachment - Theft from Motor Vehicles
April 8, 2021

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

2020
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Actuals

0

2

8

7

6

2

6

4

2

2

1

1

Running Total

0

2

10

17

23

25

31

35

37

39

40

41

10

Quarter

15

12

4

2021
Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Actuals

12

7

3

Running Total

12

19

22

Quarter

22

Year over Year
% Change

850%

Apr

May

TBD
120%

Jun

Jul

Aug

TBD

Sep

Oct

Nov

TBD

Dec

CITY OF BROOKS
Council Committee
April 13, 2021

NOTES
MEMBERS OF COUNCIL
Present:







Mayor Barry Morishita
Councillor Dan Klein
Councillor John Petrie
Councillor Jon Nesbitt
Councillor Norm Gerestein
Councillor Joel Goodnough

CITY STAFF
Present:







Alan Martens, CAO
Amy Rommens, Manager, Administration
Alicia Bartlette, Manager, Planning and Engineering
Natasha Laviolette, Supervisor, Recreation Services
Jenny Wallace, Executive Assistant/Recording Secretary
Bruce Thiessen, IT Supervisor

Other:
 S. Stanway, Brooks Bulletin
Mayor Barry Morishita called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
1.

CANADA DAY DELEBRATION 2021 – EVENT UPDATE
N. Laviolette noted that the City of Brooks has a proud tradition of
providing an excellent Canada Day event for all members of the
community to celebrate our Nation’s rich heritage.
N. Laviolette stated that due to unknowns of COVID-19, staff are taking a
phased approach regarding the 2021 event. Plan A is to host a drive-in
movie and fireworks at the CRA, and Plan B (if restrictions allow) is to host
a modified event at Duke of Sutherland Park and plan for entertainment
and activities that are permitted. It was noted that Plan A is pending grant
approval.
Local partners from previous years have been approached to see if they
are able to provide donations or volunteers should restrictions permit an
event to go forward.
Committee accepted the report as information.

CITY OF BROOKS
Council Committee
April 13, 2021

NOTES
2.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION BYLAW REVIEW
A. Rommens noted that as part of Council’s Strategic Focus Area,
Administration was to review the Public Notification Bylaw three years
after implementation. Administration has reviewed the Bylaw with
Development and Communication staff, and Administration is
recommending that no changes be made to Bylaw 18/08.
Discussion was held on the other methods allowed for advertising under
the Bylaw, and when time permits that Administration look into whether a
review cycle should be considered for all Bylaws/Policies.

3.

PORTABLE SIGN BYLAW
A. Rommens noted that Administration was directed to make changes to
the Portable Sign Bylaw to try to stop the time consumed on portable sign
complaints, to allow third party advertising and to give additional discretion
to the Development Officer when responding to complaints. A. Rommens
went over the changes in the Bylaw, and recommended that the draft
Bylaw be forwarded to Council.
Discussion was held on the draft Bylaw with respect to how variances
would apply, utilizing vacant lots for community event signs versus having
two signs per parcel (one business or third party sign, and a community
event sign), and the appeal process.
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR NESBITT that the draft Portable Sign
Bylaw 21/09 be forwarded to Council for approval.
MOTION CARRIED

4.

WHISTLE CESSATION – PUBLIC CONSULTATION
A. Bartlette noted that staff was directed to look at the process involved to
stop the train whistle in the City of Brooks due to public interest, and that
one of the requirements was to review the City’s rail corridor and
crossings to ensure they met the requirements of the Grade Crossing
Regulations and the Grade Crossing Standards. The City proceeded with
a Whistle Cessation Assessment, and the assessment determined the
need for several upgrades.
The next step in the Whistle Cessation process was to notify the public,
and staff were directed to survey the public to determine the citizens of
Brooks interest in having the whistle stopped.
A. Bartlette went over the survey results/comments, and recommended
that the City not proceed with Whistle Cessation due to the survey results
as 52.57% of City of Brooks residents do not wish to have the train whistle
stopped.

CITY OF BROOKS
Council Committee
April 13, 2021

NOTES
Discussion was held on the survey results, and the upgrades to the rail
crossings. A. Barlette noted that the cost of $145,000 is for upgrades
required for whistle cessation, and that she is waiting for costs from CP for
the additional upgrades to rail crossings unrelated to whistle cessation.
The grant application was unsuccessful and the rail crossing upgrades are
not in this year’s budget.
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR KLEIN that the City not proceed with
Whistle Cessation, due to the survey results.
MOTION CARRIED
5.

OFFSITE LEVY REPORT AND BYLAW RFP
A. Bartlette noted that in February, staff issued a Request for Proposal
(RFP) to have the City’s Offsite Levy Report and Bylaw updated. The
current Bylaw (06/21) was established in 2006 and defines offsite levy
charges for water sanitary sewer, stormsewer and transportation
infrastructure across the municipality.
Three proposals were received: ISL Engineering and Land Services $44,699 excluding GST, Corvus Business Advisors - $60,102 excluding
GST, and Application Management Consulting Ltd. - $83,985 excluding
GST.
A. Barlette recommended that Council award the Offsite Levy Report and
Bylaw Project in the amount of $60,102 excluding GST to Corvus
Business Advisors as their proposal included financial, engineering, legal
review. The City will also receive Corvus’ offsite levy rate calculation and
management tool.
Discussion was held on whether to include other areas as per the changes
in legislation (police, fire, recreation) in the review and update, and that
the City should get some general advice on this from the firm Council
awards the project to.
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR KLEIN that Council recommend the Offsite
Levy Report and Bylaw be awarded to Corvus Business Advisors in
the amount of $60,102 excluding GST, and that the item be forwarded
to Council for approval.
MOTION CARRIED

6.

ADJOURNMENT
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR PETRIE that the meeting adjourn at
9:56 a.m.
MOTION CARRIED

CITY OF BROOKS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHEQUE REGISTER
April 19, 2021 Council Meeting
CHEQUE#

SUPPLIER NAME

AMOUNT

INVOICE#

01179-0001

Canada Revenue Agency

83,888.50

PP#7 2021 CRA

Grand Total Payments

83,888.50

DESCRIPTION
PP#7 March 13 - March 26 2021

Year End Results
December 31, 2020

MGA requirement – May 1st
of each year

Independent Audit

Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards

Auditor’s
Report

Financial
Position

Notes

Operations
Consolidated
Statements

Schedules

Change in
Net Financial
Assets
Cash Flows

CITY OF BROOKS
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$0
2016

2017

2018
2019
2020

Municipal Stimulus
Program
Grant
Sold 5 lots
in the EID
increased both
cash/short
term
Industrial
subdivision
investments & deferred revenue.

ICF funds were
from
the
Debtreceivable
repayment
of $3.6M
County of Newell pursuant to new
agreement.

Additional MSI allocation
$2,639,350
of debt repayment.
received

Tangible Capital Assets
Net Book Value

$140,000,000

$135,000,000

$130,000,000

$122,273,160

$125,000,000

$120,000,000

$115,000,000
2016

2017

2018
2019
2020

CITY OF BROOKS
REVENUES
2020/2019

2020 Total =$31,868,000

$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000

2019
2020

$0
‐$2,000,000

2020

2019

CITY OF BROOKS
EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT
2020/2019

2020 Total = $31,235,465
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$0

2020

2019

CITY OF BROOKS
EXPENSES BY OBJECT
2020/2019

$10,000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$0

2020

2019

2020 Total = $31,235,465

Accumulated Surplus
Equity in TCA

$121,000,000
$120,500,000
$120,000,000
$119,500,000
$118,022,096

$119,000,000
$118,500,000
$118,000,000
$117,500,000
$117,000,000
$116,500,000
2016
2017
2018
2019

2020

CITY OF BROOKS
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
RESERVE BALANCES

$16,000,000

$6,957,333

$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
Operating
Capital

$6,000,000

$7,180,420

$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$0
2016

2017

2018

2019
2020

CITY OF BROOKS
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

$13,439,093

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000
1

$0
2016

2017
2018
2019
2020

Budget Variance – Tax Supported Departments
Accrual=Basis
to illustrate
Operating deficit
($438,000)
financial position at end of fiscal
year

ICF revenue= $574,000
Cash Basis to determine amount
of revenue that needs to be
MOST grant=
$1,316,000
raised
through taxes

Surplus to be transferred to Reserves per
Budget
vs Actual
Reserve Policy
= $1,452,000

Reserve Transfer– Tax Supported Departments
Accrual Basis
to illustrate
General Operating
Reserve
= $1,626,000
financial position at end of fiscal
year

Stabilization Reserve = ($164,000)
Cash Basis to determine amount
of revenue that needs to be
Vehicle/Equipment
Replacement
Reserve
raised through
taxes

= $64,000
Land Development Reserve = ($72,000)
Budget vs Actual

Additional Statements

Notes to the Financial
Statements

Schedules

QUESTIONS

City of Brooks
Financial Statements

T
AF
DR

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting
City of Brooks’ management is responsible for the preparation, accuracy, objectivity, and
integrity of the accompanying financial statements and the notes thereto. Management believes
that the financial statements present fairly the City’s financial position as at December 31, 2020
and the results of its operations for the year then ended.

AF
T

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. Financial statements are not precise, since they include certain amounts
based on estimates and judgments. Such amounts have been determined on a reasonable
basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.
In fulfilling its responsibilities and recognizing the limits inherent in all systems, management has
designed and maintained a system of internal controls to produce reliable information to meet
reporting requirements. The system is designed to provide management with reasonable
assurance that transactions are properly authorized, reliable financial records are maintained,
and assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded.

D

R

The City Council carries out its responsibilities for review of the financial statements principally
through its Audit Committee. This committee meets regularly with management and external
auditors to discuss the results of audit examinations and financial reporting matters. The external
auditors have full access to the Audit Committee with and without the presence of management.
The City Council has approved the financial statements.
The financial statements have been audited by the independent firm of KPMG LLP, Chartered
Professional Accountants. Their report to the Members of Council of the City of Brooks, stating
the scope of their examination and opinion on the financial statements, follows.

_____________________________________
Alan Martens
Chief Administrative Officer

___________________________________
Shelley Thomas
Finance Manager

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To His Worship the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of Brooks

Opinion

AF
T

We have audited the financial statements of City of Brooks (the Entity), which comprise:

•

the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020

•

the statement of operations for the year then ended

•

the statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended

•

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

•

R

and notes and schedules to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies
(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

D

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2020, and its results of
operations, changes in net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
auditors’ report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

1

Information
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises:
• the information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon,
included in the Annual Financial Report. The Annual Financial Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of the auditors’ report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit and remain alert for indications that the other information appears to be materially
misstated.

AF
T

When we read the Annual Financial Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report the matter to those
charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements

R

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

D

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity‘s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

2

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.
We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

•

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

D

R

AF
T

•

Chartered Professional Accountants
Lethbridge, Canada
DRAFT
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City of Brooks
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

Financial Assets
Cash and short-term investments (Note 3)
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable (Note 4)
Trade and other receivables (Note 5)
Investments (Note 6)
Land held for resale

Net financial assets
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 12)
Inventories for consumption
Prepaid expenses

T
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Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Deferred revenue (Note 7)
Employee benefit obligations (Note 8)
Provision for landfill post-closure costs (Note 9)
Long-term debt (Note 10)

2020

2019

$ 16,687,737
1,345,118
5,500,819
11,113,672
2,354,999

$ 15,058,008
1,072,073
4,256,544
11,112,746
2,354,999

37,002,345

33,854,370

4,226,135
300,735
4,430,458
698,103
84,533
4,752,869

4,085,190
300,092
3,028,437
620,152
95,334
7,392,219

14,492,833

15,521,424

22,509,512

18,332,946

122,273,160
382,634
433,636

125,778,464
408,700
445,913

123,089,430

126,633,077

$145,598,942

$144,966,023

Commitments (Note 16)
Contingencies (Note 17)
COVID-19 impact (Note 21)
Accumulated surplus (Note 13)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
1

City of Brooks
Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
Budget

2020

2019

(Note 19)

Revenue
Net municipal taxes (Schedule 1)
User fees and sales of goods
Government transfers (Schedule 2)
Investment income
Penalties and costs of taxes
Development levies
Licenses, permits, rentals and fines
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Franchise and concession contracts
Other

$ 13,146,713
7,062,058
2,047,109
205,300
163,213
1,466,909
1,603,000
1,240,240

$ 13,087,063 $ 12,964,980
6,848,283
6,940,557
4,186,006
2,236,914
160,939
304,568
109,283
175,443
6,139
1,205,365
1,396,464
(69,316)
(30,224)
1,574,656
1,607,027
1,281,214
1,332,478
28,383,493

26,934,346

493,969
3,467,732
4,717,408
6,436,857
3,312,753
1,893,690
1,478,830
868,187
908,000
37,897
1,558,724
7,163,071

521,223
3,605,026
4,891,009
6,151,670
3,420,392
1,495,589
1,345,757
858,669
850,627
42,798
1,476,468
6,576,237

476,260
3,223,404
4,819,771
5,950,084
3,563,391
1,903,680
1,315,135
880,636
1,025,170
52,648
1,547,079
7,129,830

32,337,118

31,235,465

31,887,088

Deficiency of revenue over expenses before the undernoted

(5,402,576)

(2,851,972)

(4,952,742)

Other
Contributed tangible capital assets
Government transfers for capital (Schedule 2)

14,141,232

3,484,891

32,581
3,369,769

14,141,232

3,484,891

3,402,350

8,738,656
144,966,023

632,919
144,966,023

$153,704,679

$145,598,942

Expenses (Schedule 3)
Legislative
Administration
Protective Services
Transportation Services
Water & Surface Irrigation
Sanitary Sewer
Waste Management
Family & Community Services
Land Use, Planning, Zoning & Development
Land Development
Culture & Facilities
Parks & Recreation

T
AF
DR

26,934,542

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated surplus, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(1,550,392)
146,516,415
$144,966,023

City of Brooks
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
Budget

2020

2019

(Note 19)

$

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Contributed tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

Decrease (increase) of inventories for consumption
Decrease (increase) of prepaid expenses

Net financial assets, end of year

T
AF
DR

Change in net financial assets
Net financial assets, beginning of year

8,738,656

$

632,919

(18,631,184)
6,772,500
-

(3,387,277)
50,400
6,772,865
69,316

(3,223,833)
(32,581)
78,721
6,841,538
30,224

(11,858,684)

3,505,304

3,694,069

-

26,066
12,277

(48,549)
(43,950)

-

38,343

(92,499)

(3,120,028)
18,332,946
$ 15,212,918

4,176,566
18,332,946

2,051,178
16,281,768

$ 22,509,512

$ 18,332,946

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ (1,550,392)

City of Brooks
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019
2020
Operations
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Items not involving cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions
Change in non-cash financial assets and liabilities
Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable
Trade and other receivables
Inventories for consumption
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Deferred revenue
Employee benefit obligations
Provision for landfill post-closure costs

T
AF
DR

Capital activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
- internally funded from operations
- internally funded from reserves
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets

$

Investing activities
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and cash equivalents
Increase in investments
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments with original maturities of over three months
Financial activities
Principal payments on long-term debt - capital
Change in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (Note 3)

2019

632,919 $ (1,550,392)
6,772,865
69,316
-

6,841,538
30,224
(32,581)

(273,045)
(1,244,275)
26,066
12,277
140,945
643
1,402,021
77,951
(10,801)

134,968
452,995
(48,549)
(43,950)
(1,252,328)
43,469
670,829
6,092
(84,714)

7,606,882

5,167,601

(1,235,611)
(2,151,666)
50,400

(1,186,303)
(2,037,530)
78,721

(3,336,877)

(3,145,112)

(926)
(3,000,000)

17,326
(1,609)
8,114,864

(3,000,926)

8,130,581

(2,639,350)

(2,789,258)

(2,639,350)

(2,789,258)

(1,370,271)
15,058,008

7,363,812
7,694,196

$ 13,687,737 $ 15,058,008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the City of Brooks are the representations of management prepared in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. Significant accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows:
(a)

Reporting entity
The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the reporting entity which
comprises all the organizations that are owned or controlled by the City and are, therefore, accountable to the
Council for the administration of their financial affairs and resources.
Taxes levied also include operating requisitions for educational and other external organizations that are not
part of the municipal reporting entity.
The statements exclude trust assets that are administered for the benefit of external parties.
Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.

(b)

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when it is
earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon receipt of
goods or services and/or the legal obligation to pay.

T
AF
DR

Funds from external parties and earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legislation are accounted for as
deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.
Government transfers, contribution and other amounts are received from third parties pursuant to legislation,
regulation or agreement and may only be used for certain programs, in the completion of specific work, or for
the purchase of tangible capital assets. In addition, certain user charges and fees are collected for which the
related services have yet to be performed. Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are
incurred, services performed or the tangible capital assets are acquired.
Tax revenues result from non-exchange transactions that are compulsorily paid to governments in accordance
with the laws and regulations established to provide revenue to the government for public services. The revenue
is recognized when the tax has been authorized and the taxable event has occurred.
(c)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term deposits which are highly liquid with original
maturities of less than three months at the date of acquisition.

(d)

Employee future benefits
The City participates in a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Pension contributions are accounted for
using defined contribution accounting, wherein contributions for current and past service pension benefits are
recorded as expenses in the year in which they become due.

(e)

Investments
Investments are recorded at amortized cost. When there is a loss in value that is other than a temporary
decline, the respective investment is written down to recognize the loss.

(f)

Inventories
Inventories for consumption, consisting of gravel, are recognized only to the extent of royalties and crushing
costs incurred.
Land inventory held for resale is recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes costs for
land acquisition and improvements required to prepare the land for servicing such as clearing, stripping and
5

City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)

Inventories (continued)
leveling charges. Related development costs incurred to provide infrastructure such as water and wastewater
services, roads, sidewalks and street lighting are recorded as tangible capital assets under their respective
function.

(g)

Over-levies collections and under-levies
Over-levies and under-levies arise from the difference between the actual property tax levy made to cover each
requisition and the actual amount requisitioned.
If the actual levy exceeds the requisition, the over-levy is accrued as a liability and property tax revenue is
reduced. Where the actual levy is less than the requisition amount, the under-levy is accrued as a receivable
and as property tax revenue.
Requisition tax rates in the subsequent year are adjusted for any over-levies or under-levies of the prior year.

(h)

Government transfers

T
AF
DR

Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are not the result of an
exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct financial return.
Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which events giving
rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met, and
reasonable estimates of the amounts can be determined.
(i)

Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of
services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the normal
course of operations.
(j)

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible
capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life as follows:

Years
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements

10 - 25
25 - 50

Engineered structures
Roads infrastructure
Water and wastewater infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

10 - 65
45 - 75
5 - 15
10 - 40

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.
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City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j)

Tangible capital assets (continued)
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the City's
ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future economic benefits associated with the asset
are less than the book value of the asset.
The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction of a tangible capital
asset.
(i)

Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at fair value at the date of receipt and also
are recorded as revenue.

(k)

Contaminated sites
Contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of
a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.

(l)

T
AF
DR

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized, net of any expected recoveries, when all of the
following criteria are met:
i)

an environmental standard exists

ii)

contamination exceeds the environmental standard

iii)

the organization is directly responsible or accepts responsibility for the liability

iv)

future economic benefits will be given up, and

v)

a reasonable estimate of the liability can be made.

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Where measurement uncertainty exists, the
financial statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality.
Significant areas subject to estimates and assumptions include the estimated useful life of tangible capital
assets, the valuation of trade and other receivables, taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable, investments,
inventory, land held for resale, the determination of employee future benefits and the provision for landfill postclosure costs.
The uncertainties around the COVID-19 pandemic, as described in Note 21, require the use of judgement and
estimates which resulted in no material impact for the year ended December 31, 2020, however, the future
impact of COVIID-19 cannot reasonably be estimated at this time.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

2.

Future accounting pronouncements
The following summarizes the upcoming changes to the Public Sector Accounting Standards by the Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board (PSAB). In 2021, the City will continue to assess the impact and prepare for the adoption
of these standards. While the timing of standard adoption can vary, certain standards must be adopted concurrently.
(a)

PS 1201 - Financial statement presentation
The implementation of this standard requires a new statement of remeasurement gains and losses
separate from the statement of operations. This new statement will include the unrealized gains and
losses arising from the remeasurement of financial instruments and items denominated in a foreign
currency. This standard has been deferred by PSAB, and is now effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after April 1, 2022.

(b)

PS 3450 - Financial instruments

(c)

T
AF
DR

This section establishes recognition, measurement, and disclosure requirements for derivative and nonderivative instruments. The standard requires fair value measurements of derivative instruments and
equity instruments; all other financial instruments can be measured at either cost or fair value depending
upon elections made by the government. Unrealized gains and losses will be presented on the new
statement of remeasurement gains and losses arising from the adoption of PS 1201. There will also be a
requirement to disclose the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and clarification
is given for the derecognition of financial liabilities. As the City does not invest in derivatives or equity
instruments based on its investment policy, it is anticipated that the adoption of this standard will have a
minimal impact on the City. This standard has been deferred by PSAB, and is now effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after April 1, 2022.
PS 2601 - Foreign currency translation

This section establishes guidance on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The Section requires monetary assets and
liabilities, denominated in a foreign currency and non-monetary items valued at fair value denominated in
a foreign currency to be adjusted to reflect the exchange rates in effect at the financial statement date.
The resulting unrealized gains and losses are to be presented in the new statement of remeasurement
gains and losses. This standard has been deferred by PSAB, and is now effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2022.
(d)

PS 3041 - Portfolio investments
This section removes the distinction between temporary and portfolio investments and provides additional
guidance on recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of portfolio investments. Upon
adoption of this section and PS 3450, PS 3040 - Portfolio investments will no longer be applicable. This
standard has been deferred by PSAB, and is now effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2022.

The requirements in PS 1201, PS 3450, PS 2601 and PS 3041 are required to be implemented at the same
time.
(e)

PS 3280 - Asset retirement obligations
This section provides guidance on how to account for and report a liablility for retirement of a tangible
capital asset. This standard has been deferred by PSAB, and is now effective for fiscal years beginning
on or after April 1, 2022.
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City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

2.

Future accounting pronouncements (continued)
(f)

PS 3400 - Revenue
This section provides guidance on how to account for and report on revenue, specifically addressing
revenue arising from exchange transactions and unilateral transactions. This standard has been deferred
by PSAB, and is now effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

3.

Cash and short-term investments

Cash

2020

2019

$ 13,687,737

$ 13,002,426

Short-term investments with original maturities less than three months
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments with original maturities of over three months

T
AF
DR

Cash and short-term investments

13,687,737

2,055,582
15,058,008

3,000,000
$ 16,687,737

$ 15,058,008

Cash and Short-term investments are comprised of deposit accounts, high interest savings accounts and guaranteed
investment certificates with financial institutions and investment firms with interest rates ranging from 0.45% to 0.90%
(2019 - 1.70% to 2.49%). The original maturities on the guaranteed investment certificates held are one year (2019 two months).
The City of Brooks has established a line of credit with Chinook Financial (a division of Connect First Credit Union
Ltd.) to a maximum of $2,000,000 which bears interest at prime less 0.50%. As at December 31, 2020, $nil (2019 $nil) was drawn on this line of credit. At December 31, 2020, prime rate was 2.45% (2019 - 3.95%).
4.

Taxes and grants in place of taxes receivable

2020
$

Current Taxes
Arrears

910,878
434,240

$ 1,345,118

9

2019
$

792,959
279,114

$ 1,072,073

City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

5.

Trade and other receivables

$

Receivable from other governments

2020

2019

598,340 $

456,647

Trade receivables

3,635,525

2,523,311

Other receivables

1,444,085

1,440,653

(177,131)

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(164,067)

$ 5,500,819 $ 4,256,544
6.

Investments

2020
Credit Union Shares
Newell Regional Services Corporation Preferred Shares

$

Total investments

$ 11,113,672 $ 11,112,746

Deferred revenue

T
AF
DR

7.

2019

2019
Administration

$

3,118

Restricted
contributions
$

67,486

42,923 $
41,997
11,070,749
11,070,749

Revenue
recognized
$

(10,280) $

2020
60,324

Business licenses

92,675

1,000

(92,675)

1,000

Recreation and parks

81,416

89,269

(81,416)

89,269

2,511,195

4,948,736

(3,484,891)

3,975,040

340,033

2,642,163

(2,677,371)

304,825

$ 3,028,437

$ 7,748,654

Deferred grant revenue
Capital grants
Operating grants

10

$ (6,346,633) $ 4,430,458

City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

8.

Employee benefit obligations

2020
$

Vacation and overtime
Sick
Accumulated
Vested

459,434

2019
$

220,053
18,616
$

698,103

399,452
202,787
17,913

$

620,152

The vacation and overtime liability is comprised of the vacation and overtime that employees are deferring to future
years. Employees have earned the benefits and are entitled to these benefits within the next budgetary year.
The sick liability that is not vested, is accumulated as the employees render service and is available within the next
budgetary year.
Provision for landfill post-closure costs

T
AF
DR

9.

The accrued liability for post-closure care of the City's landfill is recognized over the life of the site, using the net
present value of the total estimated costs of post-closure care, prorated on the basis of the current capacity, in cubic
meters, utilized over the total estimated capacity of the site. The landfill ceased accepting waste and was closed in
2004. Post-closure costs are estimated and accrued in the financial statements. The estimate is based on the City's
landfill post-closure plan which anticipates completion in 2028. The net present value of the estimated post-closure
costs was calculated using a rate of return equal to 2.397% assuming inflation of 2.0%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

10. Long-term debt

Tax supported debentures
Self supported debentures

2020

2019

$ 1,055,605
3,195,459

$ 1,321,213
5,569,201

4,251,064
501,805

6,890,414
501,805

$ 4,752,869

$ 7,392,219

Interest

Total

Other - operating

The current portion of long-term debt amounts to $518,136 (2019 - $2,639,350).
Principal and interest repayment are as follows:

T
AF
DR

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Principal
$

518,136
544,002
571,199
431,442
278,727
2,409,363

$ 4,752,869

$

187,579
161,712
134,515
105,918
90,281
388,399

$ 1,068,404

$

705,715
705,714
705,714
537,360
369,008
2,797,762

$ 5,821,273

Debenture debt is repayable to the Province of Alberta (formerly Alberta Capital Finance Authority), bears interest at
rates ranging from 3.586% to 5.662% per annum, before Provincial subsidy, and matures in periods 2024 through
2035. For qualifying debentures, the Province of Alberta rebates 60% of interest in excess of 8%, 9% and 11% to a
maximum annual rate of 12.5%, depending on the date borrowed. Debenture debt is issued on the credit and security
of the City at large.
In 2008, the City purchased land for development from the Eastern Irrigation District (EID) which was funded by an
interest-free mortgage from the EID for the entire purchase price. The original mortgage was $1,521,551. The terms of
the mortgage are that the City will repay debt on a prorated basis as the lots are sold. As such, there is no fixed
repayment schedule. During the year, 0 lots (2019 - 0 lots) were sold and repayment of $nil (2019 - $nil) was required.
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11. Debt limits
Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and service on debt limits as defined by Alberta
Regulation 255/2000 for the City be disclosed as follows:

2020

2019

Total debt limit
Long-term debt

$ 42,888,755
4,752,869

$ 40,584,461
7,392,219

Amount of debt limit unused
Debt servicing limit
Debt servicing

$ 38,135,886

$ 33,192,242

$ 7,148,126
705,715

$ 6,764,077
2,869,058

Amount of debt servicing limit unused

$ 6,442,411

$ 3,895,019

T
AF
DR

The debt limit is calculated as 1.5 times revenue of the municipality (as defined in Alberta Regulation 255/2000) and
the debt service limit is calculated at 0.25 times such revenue. Incurring debt beyond these limitations requires
approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to
identify municipalities that could be at financial risk if further debt is acquired. The calculation taken alone does not
represent financial stability of the municipality. Rather, the financial statements must be interpreted as a whole.
12. Tangible capital assets

2019
Additions

Cost
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Water and wastewater infrastructure
Roads infrastructure
Assets under construction

$

9,105,499
15,681,503
49,777,397
12,899,366
54,595,923
82,680,410
1,129,806

$225,869,904

$

176,943
267,683
459,964
971,372
1,040,019
471,296

$ 3,387,277

13

Disposals
$

$
(454,199)
(302,695)
-

$ (756,894) $

Transfers

2020

$ 9,105,499
15,858,446
50,045,080
426,932
13,332,063
308,833
55,876,128
83,417,734
(735,765)
865,337
-

$228,500,287

City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

12. Tangible capital assets (continued)

2019
Disposals

Accumulated amortization
Land improvements
Building and building improvements
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Water and wastewater infrastructure
Roads infrastructure

$

6,521,496
15,041,553
7,274,166
18,155,343
53,098,882

$100,091,440

$

Amortization
Expense

$ 650,974
1,765,647
(381,405)
763,508
813,330
(255,773)
2,779,406

$ (637,178) $ 6,772,865

2020
$

7,172,470
16,807,200
7,656,269
18,968,673
55,622,515

$106,227,127

2019
Net book value

T
AF
DR

Land
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Water and wastewater infrastructure
Roads infrastructure
Assets under construction

2020
$

9,105,499
9,160,007
34,735,844
5,625,200
36,440,580
29,581,528
1,129,806

$125,778,464

$

9,105,499
8,685,976
33,237,880
5,675,794
36,907,455
27,795,219
865,337

$122,273,160

Contributed capital assets are recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution. During 2020, there were no
contributed assets (2019 - $32,581 - included in vehicles, machinery and equipment).
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13. Accumulated surplus

Unrestricted
net assets

Equity in
tangible
capital assets
(1)

Reserves (2)

2020

Total
(1) Equity in tangible capital assets:

T
AF
DR

$ 13,399,406 $118,888,050 $ 12,678,567 $144,966,023
Beginning balance
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
632,919
632,919
expenses
(4,724,771)
4,724,771
Transfers to reserves
1,113,919
(1,113,919)
Transfers from reserves
Amortization of tangible capital
6,772,865
(6,772,865)
assets
119,716
(119,716)
Net book value of assets disposed
(1,235,611)
1,235,611
Capital assets internally funded
2,151,666
(2,151,666)
Capital assets funded by reserves
(2,639,350)
2,639,350
Principal payment on capital debt
$ 13,439,093

$118,022,096

$ 14,137,753

$145,598,942

2020

2019
$146,516,415
(1,550,392)
$144,966,023

2019

$ 228,500,287 $ 225,869,904
(106,227,127)
(100,091,440)
(4,251,064)
(6,890,414)

Tangible capital assets
Accumulated amortization
Long-term debt - capital

$ 118,022,096

15

$ 118,888,050

City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
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13. Accumulated surplus (continued)
(2) Reserves are comprised of funds internally restricted as follows:

2020
Restricted for operating purposes
Operating contingency
Administration
Protective services
Environmental
Engineering services
Economic development
Other

T
AF
DR

Restricted for capital purposes
Protective services
Environmental
Engineering services
Recreation, parks and culture
Other

$

16

2,013,090
123,235
25,000
3,936,772
795,427
38,809
25,000

2019

$

516,366
184,397
25,000
3,468,192
953,930
38,809
25,000

6,957,333

5,211,694

133,682
4,027,520
2,482,546
257,462
279,210

194,234
3,964,568
2,537,257
266,113
504,701

7,180,420

7,466,873

$ 14,137,753

$ 12,678,567

City of Brooks
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2020

14. Salary and benefits disclosure
Disclosure of salaries and benefits for elected municipal officials, the chief administrative officer and designated
officers as required by provincial regulation are as follows:

2020

2019

Total

Total

Benefits &
Allowances
Salary (1)

$

74,574
26,128
28,423
27,188
25,413
25,408
29,428

$

6,745
3,939
3,004
1,921
2,377
4,264
3,176

$

81,319
30,067
31,427
29,109
27,790
29,672
32,604

$

79,274
35,197
36,554
35,007
30,136
36,519
40,430

236,562

$

25,426

$

261,988

$

293,117

T
AF
DR

Municipal Officials
Mayor Morishita
Councillor Gerestein
Councillor Klein
Councillor Goodnough
Councillor Prentice
Councillor Nesbitt
Councillor Petrie

$

(2) & (3)

2020

2019

Total

Total

Benefits &
Allowances
Salary (1)
$

Chief Administrative Officer

218,086

(2) & (3)

$

46,405

$

264,491

$

258,144

1.

Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses, overtime, lump sum payments, gross honoraria and any other
direct cash remuneration, including per diem amounts.

2.

Employer's share of all employee benefits and contributions or payments made on behalf of employees
including pension, health care, dental coverage, vision coverage, group life insurance, accidental disability and
dismemberment insurance, long and short term disability plans, professional memberships and tuition.

3.

Benefits and allowances figures also include the employer's share of the costs of additional taxable benefits
including special leave with pay, financial planning services, retirement planning services, concessionary
loans, travel allowances, car allowances and club memberships.
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15. Local authorities pension plan
(a)

Local authorities pension plan
Employees of the City participate in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP), which is one of the plans
covered by the Alberta Public Sector Pension Plans Act. The LAPP serves about 274,151 people and about 420
employers. The LAPP is financed by employer and employee contributions and investment earnings of the
LAPP Fund.
Contributions for current service are recorded as expenses in the year in which they become due.
The City is required to make current service contributions to the Plan of 9.39% of pensionable earnings up to
the Canada Pension Plan Year's Maximum Pensionable Earnings ("YMPE") and 13.84% for the excess.
Employees are required to make current service contributions of 8.39% of YMPE plus 12.84% of any portion of
pensionable salary over YMPE. Effective January 1, 2021 employer and employee rates will remain the same.
Total current and past service contributions by the City to the LAPP in 2020 were $634,388 (2019 - $620,430).
Total current and past service contributions by the employees of the City to the LAPP in 2020 were $572,573
(2019 - $559,451).
At December 31, 2019, the LAPP disclosed an actuarial surplus of $7.91 billion.
Apex Supplementary Pension Plan

T
AF
DR

(b)

The APEX supplementary pension plan, an Alberta Urban Municipality Association ("AUMA") sponsored defined
benefit pension plan covered under the provisions of the Alberta Employment Pension Plans Act, commenced
on January 1, 2003 and provides supplementary pension benefits to a prescribed class of employees. The plan
supplements the Local Authorities Pension Plan.
Contributions are made by the prescribed class of employees and the City. Employees and the City are required
to make current service contributions to APEX of 2.61% and 3.85% respectively of pensionable earnings up to
$154,611.
Total current service contributions by the City to APEX in 2020 were $36,895 (2019 - $37,096). Total current
service contributions by the employees of the City were $25,013 (2019 - $27,765).
The cost of post-retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method prorated on service and management's best estimate of salary and benefit escalation and retirement
ages of employees. The cost of post-retirement benefits are fully funded.
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16. Commitments
The City has entered into an agreement for the supply of electrical energy with AMSC/Transalta Energy Marketing
Corp. for a three year term from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2023. The contract rate is fixed for the three year
term at a rate of $51.65 per mega watt hour.
The City has also entered into an agreement for the supply of natural gas energy with AMSC/Transalta Energy
Marketing Corp. for a four year term form January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2022. The contract rate is fixed for the
four year term at a rate of $2.31 per gigajoule.
The City has entered into an agreement with ATCO Gas in regards to leasing a combined heat and power unit for the
purposes of generating electricity on City owned property. The agreement is for a 15 year term from October 9, 2015
to October 8, 2030. The City's financial commitment began in March 2016 once installation of the unit was complete.
The lease rate in 2020 was $6,988 per month (2019 - $6,851). This rate will be increased to $7,044 in 2020 and will be
adjusted by the increase or decrease of the prior years Consumer Price Index to a maximum of 2% for each of the
following calendar years.
17. Contingencies
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The City is named as defendant in various claims. Management is of the opinion that these claims are without
substantial merit and no provisions have been made in the accounts.
The City is a member of the Alberta Municipal Insurance Exchange. Under the terms of membership, the City could
become liable for its proportionate share of any claim losses in excess of the funds held by the exchange. Any liability
incurred would be accounted for as a current transaction in the year the losses are determined.
18. Financial instruments

The City as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments, such as cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, investments, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt. It is management's
opinion that the City is not exposed to significant interest or currency risks arising from its financial instruments, unless
otherwise disclosed.
Unless otherwise noted, the fair value of these financial instruments approximates their carrying values.
(a)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in
the interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risk from interest rate fluctuations, the City manages exposure
through its normal operating and financing activities.

(b)

Credit concentration
The City is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes and grants in place of taxes receivables and trade and
other receivables. Credit risk raised from the possibility that taxpayers and entities to which the City provides
services may experience financial difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations. The large number and
diversity of taxpayers and customers minimizes the credit risk.
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18. Financial instruments (continued)
(c)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the City will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
City manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash flows from operations and
anticipating investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. Liquidity risk may be impacted by the COVID19 pandemic (Note 21).

19. Budget data
The budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2020 operating and capital budgets
approved by Council on December 16, 2019. Amortization was not contemplated on development of the budget,
therefore is included in the budget adjustments. The chart below reconciles the approved budget to the budget figures
reported in these financial statements.

Budget Amount

Less
Transfer from other funds
Proceeds on debt issue
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Revenue
Approved operating budget
Operating budget adjustments
Approved capital budget
Capital budget adjustments

$

34,098,865
1,091,493
17,016,488
1,614,696
(11,543,368)
(1,202,400)

Total revenue

41,075,774

Expenses
Approved operating budget
Operating budget adjustments
Approved capital budget
Capital budget adjustments

34,098,865
7,863,993
17,016,488
1,614,696

Less
Transfer to other funds
Capital expenditures
Debt principal payments

(6,986,391)
(18,631,184)
(2,639,349)
32,337,118

Total expenses
$

Excess of revenue over expenses
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20. Segmented disclosure
The City of Brooks provides a range of services to its ratepayers. For each reported segment, revenues and expenses
represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable
basis. The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
financial statements as disclosed in Note 1.
The segments are as follows:
This segment includes the taxation and requisitioning functions of the City
as well as the legislative and adminstrative services.

Protective Services

This segment includes policing services such as funding to the local
RCMP detachment and the function of bylaw enforcement. Fire services
are also included in this segment.

Transportation Services

This segment includes maintenance and operations of the roadways,
including streets, sidewalks and lighting. As well, the City of Brooks is
responsible for 50% of the operations and capital acquisitions of the
Brooks Regional Airport.

Planning and Development

This segment includes the functions involved with land use planning,
zoning and development as well as subdivision development and land
sales.

Recreation and Culture

This segment includes the operations of all recreational facilities within
the city, including the programs and services offered to the public. The
maintenance of the park areas and the funding of all cultural buildings are
also included in this segment.

Environmental Services

This segment includes the operations required to provide the ratepayers
with water, wastewater and waste management services.

Family and Community Services

This segment includes the operations of the cemetery and funding to the
regional Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) board.
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General Government

Refer to the Schedule of Segmented Disclosure (Schedule 4).
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21. COVID-19 impact
The World Health Organization declared a global pandemic for the COVID-19 virus on March 11, 2020. Consequently,
on March 17, 2020, the Government of Alberta decalared a state of public health emergency over the COVID-19
pandemic and enacted measures for its citizens and businesses to follow, intended to minimize the impact of the virus.
The current challenging economic climate may lead to adverse changes in cash flows, working capital and/or debt
balances, which may also have a direct impact on the operating results and financial position of the City in the future.
The City did not experience any significant financial implications to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The City has implemented the following in relation to their pandemic response:
1. The City Office was closed to the public for extended periods of time between March 16, 2020 to December 31,
2020. Pending provincial health measures, the office was reopened with limited services.
2. Restricted access to City facilities from March 16, 2020 to December 31, 2020.
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3. City employees have been working from home when they are able and staff rotation has been implemented to
follow social distancing requirements on site.
4. Temporary relief measures were put in place for residents and businesses ensuring that essential utility services
continue to be provided, without interruption or penalties for non-payment from April 13, 2020 to October 1, 2020.
5. The City deferred penalties on the non-payment of property taxes from July 1, 2020 to October 2, 2020. The
penalty charged on late payment of taxes for current taxes unpaid was reduced to 2% from 4.75% in 2019. A
second penalty on current taxes of 2.27% was eliminated in 2020.
6. A property tax rebate was applied to all property taxes equal to 1.08% of the municipal portion of property taxes for
residential/farmland properties and 5% of the municipal portion of property taxes for non-residential properties.
7. Several temporary measures were put into place to assist businesses within the City including the cancellation of
the Business Revitalization Tax and the reduction of building and development fees. The City did not levy
supplementary property taxes in 2020.
8. The City collaborated with Alberta Health Services to establish COVID-19 testing facilities and isolation centres to
limit the spread of COVID-19 within the community.
COVID-19 relief was provided to the City in the form of the Municipal Operating Support Transfer ("MOST") grant
received from the Province of Alberta in the amount of $1,468,294 with $1,423,441 being recognized into income in
2020.
The ongoing challenging economic climate presents uncertainty over future cash flows and may have a significant
impact on future operations. An estimate of the financial effect of these items is not practicable at this time.
22. Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were approved by City Council.
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Schedule 1
Budget

2020

2019

$11,605,917
5,331,948
469,558
5,844
62,351

$11,424,337
5,245,268
441,187
5,618
52,114

$11,473,056
5,249,455
466,506
5,294
56,989

17,475,618

17,168,524

17,251,300

3,665,009
362,473
300,527
896

3,681,898
279,675
117,978
1,910

3,625,409
357,951
300,876
2,084

4,328,905

4,081,461

4,286,320

$13,146,713

$13,087,063

$12,964,980

(Note 19)

Revenue
Residential property taxes
Commercial and industrial property taxes
Linear property taxes
Farmland property taxes
Government grants in place of property taxes

Requisitions
Alberta School Foundation Fund
Seperate School Division
Newell Senior's Foundation
Designated Industrial Property Requisition
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Net taxes
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Schedule 2
Budget

2020

2019

(Note 19)

Transfer for operating
Federal
Provincial
Local

$

Transfer for capital
Federal
Provincial
Local
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12,000
1,312,459
722,650

$

14,200
2,725,583
1,446,223

$

16,360
1,374,765
845,789

2,047,109

4,186,006

2,236,914

3,553,965
9,582,267
1,005,000

42,347
3,302,850
139,694

200,085
3,077,947
91,737

14,141,232

3,484,891

3,369,769

$16,188,341

$ 7,670,897

$ 5,606,683

City of Brooks
Schedule of Expenses by Object
Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

Schedule 3
Budget

2020

2019

(Note 19)

Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Contracted and general services
Materials, goods, supplies and utilities
Transfers to local boards and agencies
Transfers to individuals and organizations
Bank charges and short-term interest
Interest on long-term debt
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Other operating expenses

$

9,593,871
8,306,627
5,214,032
1,845,950
332,409
37,117
229,709
6,772,500
4,903

$ 32,337,118
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$

9,327,591
7,231,846
5,143,676
1,841,725
295,076
41,734
220,603
6,772,865
360,349

$ 31,235,465

$

9,561,816
7,971,542
5,114,251
1,830,966
218,214
44,433
271,981
6,841,538
32,347

$ 31,887,088

City of Brooks
Schedule of Segmented Disclosure
Year ended December 31, 2020

Schedule 4
Family &

2020

General

Protective

Transportation

Planning &

Government

Services

Services

Development

Recreation & Environmental
Culture

Total

Community

Services

Services

2020

REVENUE
Net municipal taxes
Total government transfers
User fees and sales of goods

$ 13,087,063 $

-

1,375,466

1,120,564

12,405

8,945

Investment income

160,939

Total other revenue

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$ 13,087,063

515,355

215,061

3,088,775

691,799

663,877

7,670,897

-

22,378

379,503

6,389,452

35,600

6,848,283

-

-

-

-

-

-

160,939

1,860,872

495,717

955,086

46,343

558,114

183,621

1,449

4,101,202

16,496,745

1,625,226

1,470,441

283,782

4,026,392

7,264,872

700,926

31,868,384

Salaries, wages and benefits

2,335,221

1,316,013

1,005,187

450,305

3,058,184

1,097,851

64,830

9,327,591

Contracted and general
services

1,164,960

3,055,898

1,007,379

239,918

840,599

920,251

2,841

7,231,846

110,771

218,836

945,339

26,269

47,915

73,854

EXPENSES

Materials, goods, supplies and
utilities
Interest on long-term debt
Total other expenses
(recoveries)

-

-

376,778

1,037

4,035,645

4,665,638

12,461,100

(3,040,412)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUE OVER

1,239,808

2,594,552

8,101

5,143,676

90,816

130,745

400,567

617,636

775,268

2,136,801

7,664

34,124

81,102

97,713

-

220,603

1,666

541

7,720

14,341

-

402,083

3,058,051

881,902

5,627,980

5,342,344

851,040

24,462,600

(1,587,610)

(598,120)

(1,601,588)

1,922,528

(150,114)

7,405,784

3,093,619

11,523

2,424,725
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Transfers

EXPENSES, BEFORE
AMORTIZATION
Amortization of tangible capital
assets

90,604

225,371

919,394

7,629

1,003,134 $

(157,743) $

6,772,865

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES

$ 12,370,496 $ (3,265,783) $

(4,681,229) $

26

(609,643) $ (4,026,313) $

632,919

City of Brooks
Schedule of Segmented Disclosure, comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2019
Year ended December 31, 2020

Schedule 4
Family &

2019

General

Protective

Transportation

Planning &

Government

Services

Services

Development

Recreation & Environmental
Culture

Community

Services

Services

Total
2019

REVENUE
Net municipal taxes

$ 12,964,980 $

-

Total government transfers

93,790

1,031,757

User fees and sales of goods

11,115

3,448

Investment income

304,568

Total other revenue

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$ 12,964,980

105,941

308,158

2,468,141

936,562

662,334

5,606,683

-

30,028

807,866

6,053,860

34,240

6,940,557

-

-

-

-

-

-

304,568

1,921,294

541,428

985,762

60,553

754,624

255,297

950

4,519,908

15,295,747

1,576,633

1,091,703

398,739

4,030,631

7,245,719

697,524

30,336,696

Salaries, wages and benefits

2,238,821

1,222,990

1,002,488

496,876

3,397,980

1,124,731

77,930

9,561,816

Contracted and general
services

1,107,230

3,125,337

890,761

364,982

982,750

1,490,159

10,323

7,971,542

147,178

177,865

859,215

56,470

61,416

70,865

EXPENSES

Materials, goods, supplies and
utilities
Interest on long-term debt
Total other expenses
(recoveries)

-

-

56,863

2,530

3,611,508

4,599,587

11,684,239

(3,022,954)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUE OVER

1,290,346

2,569,356

13,821

5,114,251

105,052

433,217

607,087

771,543

2,049,180

8,888

42,174

118,791

102,128

-

271,981

1,529

741

16,628

-

76,780

2,762,881

1,066,295

6,239,712

5,891,950

873,617

25,045,550

1,353,769

(176,093)

5,291,146
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Transfers

-

(1,511)

EXPENSES, BEFORE
AMORTIZATION
Amortization of tangible capital
assets

88,156

220,184

(1,671,178)

(667,556)

(2,209,081)

3,187,203

11,523

2,437,197

890,256

7,019

6,841,538

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES

$ 11,596,083 $ (3,243,138) $

(4,858,381) $

27

(679,079) $ (4,646,278) $

463,513 $

(183,112) $ (1,550,392)
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POLICY STATEMENT:
The City is committed to the acquisition of goods and services at the best value through
purchasing processes which ensure integrity, transparency, accountability and efficiency while
being fair and equitable to all vendors.
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THE PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY IS TO:
Establish and delegate Purchasing Authority, ensure fairness and expediency in City purchases,
reflect a commitment to protect our local economy and ensure compliance with legislation and
current trade agreements.
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Definitions
1. Local Business means “a business located within the Brooks Region and possessing a City of
Brooks business licence”.
2. Professional Services means “those services which require certified or specialized
professional expertise such as lawyers, engineers and consultants”.
3. Purchasing Authority means “the authority granted to a City employee to purchase and/or
approve the purchase of goods and or services on behalf of the City. This does not include
the authority to sign or execute contracts.
4. Trade Agreements means “the Canadian Free Trade Agreement, the New West Partnership
Trade Agreement and any future Trade Agreements the City may become subject to plus
any amendments made to these Trade Agreements.”
PROCEDURES
Delegation of Purchasing Authority
5. Subject to the provisions of this Policy and City of Brooks Bylaw 07/21, being the Chief
Administrative Officer (CAO) Bylaw as may be amended from time to time, Purchasing
Authority will be granted as follows:
a) The CAO is authorized to retain the services of any individual, corporation or legal
counsel, for purposes relating to the operations of the City and complete all necessary
documents required for the provision of such services, provided the expenditure does
not exceed $50,000 and is included in the current approved budget;
b) The CAO is authorized to approve up to $10,000 for purchases which have not been
included in the current approved budget, but are required in the City’s operations;
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c) The CAO is authorized to delegate, revoke or amend, with or without conditions,
Purchasing Authority of up to $50,000 to any employee;
d) Department managers who have been delegated Purchasing Authority from the CAO,
may further delegate Purchasing Authority, in writing, to any employee;
e) The CAO and department managers must ensure that every employee to who
Purchasing Authority is delegated is familiar and compliant with all applicable policies
and procedures, and that budget approval for the purchase is in place;
f) All purchases that are not in the current approved budget or exceed $50,000 $500,000
must be approved by Council;
g) Notwithstanding 5(f), a manager may overspend an operational budget line provided
there is room to absorb the over expenditure in other areas of the manager’s scope of
authority and provided all other provisions of this Policy are met; and,
h) Notwithstanding anything in this Policy, the CAO may authorize any required
expenditures in emergency situations where:
i) The health and safety of employees or the public is at risk;
ii) The loss or failure of infrastructure is at risk;
iii) Any delay in procuring goods and services could jeopardize the City’s ability to
provide essential services; or,
iv) Pursuant to an enactment such as the Emergency Management Act.
6. Every invoice, requisition or payment request must be signed by a staff member with
Purchasing Authority for the City department in which the purchase pertains to.
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Methods of Purchasing
7. Direct Purchase Process
a) The direct purchase process allows goods and services to be purchased without a
competitive pricing requirement. This process may be used to obtain goods and services
when the value of the goods and services is less than $2,500 or one of the following
criteria exist:
i. Where a relationship has been established with an exclusive supplier provided
that the supplier continues to deliver best value;
ii. Where, at the discretion of the CAO, best value can be achieved through a
sole source purchase arrangement; or,
iii. Professional Services for assignments not exceeding $5,000.
8. Competitive Pricing or Quotation Process
a) A competitive pricing or quotation process shall be used when the costs of goods and
services exceeds $2,500, the criteria in Section 7 does not exist and the cost does not
exceed thresholds of Trade Agreements. This process includes obtaining price and
quality comparisons to ensure that the City receives the best value for their purchases
with the following guidelines:
i.
At the discretion of an employee with Purchasing Authority, the mechanism
used to acquire adequate price and quality comparisons may include verbal or
written quotations or proposals, depending on the nature of the purchase;
ii.
At the discretion of an employee with Purchasing Authority, the number of
vendors which are contacted to participate in the competitive pricing process
will depend on the nature of the purchase and will ensure that all appropriate
purchasing considerations have been taken into account;
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iii.
iv.
v.

v.

vi.

The competitive pricing process must be conducted in a manner that is fair
and equitable to the vendors whom are participating;
The final selection of the vendor may be made by the staff member with
Purchasing Authority up to the limits specified in this Policy; and,
All competitive pricing quotations for goods and services over $50,000 must
be chosen by Council and consideration will be given to the recommendation
from the staff member with Purchasing Authority and the CAO.
All competitive pricing quotations for goods and services must be chosen by
Council if any of the following conditions exist:
a) the recommended goods or services to be procured is not the lowest bid
or tender offered;
b) the scope of the goods or services has changed from what was approved
in the budget;
c) the cost of the goods or services are over $500,000; or,
d) the CAO or Council specifically requests that the purchase be approved
through a motion in Council.
In the instances listed in v. a) – d), consideration will be given to the
recommendation from the staff member with Purchasing Authority and the
CAO.

9. Tender/Request for Proposal Process
a) The tender/request for proposal process is a formal method of obtaining competitive
prices and information on specified criteria and must be used for goods and services
exceeding thresholds of Trade Agreements and when otherwise deemed appropriate
with the following guidelines:
i.
The City’s tender/request for proposal process must comply with Trade
Agreements;
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ii.

iii.

The evaluation criteria in which bids/proposals are ranked and chosen may be
determined by the staff member with Purchasing Authority depending on the
nature of the good and services and the expertise required; and,
The successful bidder/proponent of all requests for proposals will be determined
by Council based on all the respondents, and consideration will be given to the
recommendation from the staff member with Purchasing Authority and the CAO.

Purchasing Considerations
10. Local Preference
a) The City of Brooks will provide opportunities to Local Businesses to encourage
development of Brooks’ business community based on the following guidelines, which
will apply to purchases not exceeding thresholds of the Trade Agreements:
i.
ii.

iii.

iv.
v.

Employees with Purchasing Authority are encouraged to make all direct
purchases through Local Businesses, when possible;
Employees with Purchasing Authority are encouraged to invite all qualified Local
Businesses to submit a quotation for goods and services as part of the
competitive pricing or quotation process;
When hiring a firm or organization to act as a prime contractor, employees with
Purchasing Authority may suggest and recommend Local Businesses to act as
suppliers and sub‐contractors;
Employees with Purchasing Authority may direct competitions to Local
Businesses only; and,
When considering price in the evaluation of submitted quotations or proposals,
preference will be given to Local Businesses by subtracting five percent (5%) up
to a maximum local preference discount of two thousand dollars ($2,000).
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11. Other Best Value Considerations
a) The City of Brooks will consider the overall cost in the purchasing of goods and services
and evaluate price and non‐price factors with every purchase. The following factors in
combination, but not necessarily listed in order of importance, shall be considered in
evaluating the value of any bid, in as far as it is practical to do so:
i. Price: based on the same delivery method, payment terms and discounts
offered;
ii. Record of performance: based on previous service and experience;
iii.
Quality: based on the fulfillment of purchasing needs and expectations;
iv.
Availability/Capacity: based on the ability of the vendor to start, undertake,
complete or deliver within set time constraints;
v.
Service: based on the ability of the vendor to provide timely service before,
during and after delivery or completion, including the warranty offered;
vi.
Local content: based on the economic advantage and community benefits gained
by using products and services sourced within the City of Brooks, County of
Newell, Province of Alberta and within Canada;
vii.
Standardization: based on the opportunity to purchase similar items in order to
reduce future costs; and,
viii.
Bulk Purchasing: based on the ability to reduce future or present costs through
the purchase of larger quantities or bulk packaging.
12. Environmental
a) Whenever feasible, the City will consider environmental impacts and sustainability.
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THE PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY IS TO:
Establish and delegate Purchasing Authority, ensure fairness and expediency in City purchases,
reflect a commitment to protect our local economy and ensure compliance with legislation and
current trade agreements.
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Definitions
1. Local Business means “a business located within the Brooks Region and possessing a City of
Brooks business licence”.
2. Professional Services means “those services which require certified or specialized
professional expertise such as lawyers, engineers and consultants”.
3. Purchasing Authority means “the authority granted to a City employee to purchase and/or
approve the purchase of goods and or services on behalf of the City. This does not include
the authority to sign or execute contracts.
4. Trade Agreements means “the Canadian Free Trade Agreement, the New West Partnership
Trade Agreement and any future Trade Agreements the City may become subject to plus
any amendments made to these Trade Agreements.”
PROCEDURES
Delegation of Purchasing Authority
5. Subject to the provisions of this Policy and City of Brooks Bylaw 07/21, being the Chief
Administrative Officer (CAO) Bylaw as may be amended from time to time, Purchasing
Authority will be granted as follows:
a) The CAO is authorized to retain the services of any individual, corporation or legal
counsel, for purposes relating to the operations of the City and complete all necessary
documents required for the provision of such services, provided the expenditure does
not exceed $50,000 and is included in the current approved budget;
b) The CAO is authorized to approve up to $10,000 for purchases which have not been
included in the current approved budget, but are required in the City’s operations;
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c) The CAO is authorized to delegate, revoke or amend, with or without conditions,
Purchasing Authority of up to $50,000 to any employee;
d) Department managers who have been delegated Purchasing Authority from the CAO,
may further delegate Purchasing Authority, in writing, to any employee;
e) The CAO and department managers must ensure that every employee to who
Purchasing Authority is delegated is familiar and compliant with all applicable policies
and procedures, and that budget approval for the purchase is in place;
f) All purchases that are not in the current approved budget or exceed $500,000 must be
approved by Council;
g) Notwithstanding 5(f), a manager may overspend an operational budget line provided
there is room to absorb the over expenditure in other areas of the manager’s scope of
authority and provided all other provisions of this Policy are met; and,
h) Notwithstanding anything in this Policy, the CAO may authorize any required
expenditures in emergency situations where:
i) The health and safety of employees or the public is at risk;
ii) The loss or failure of infrastructure is at risk;
iii) Any delay in procuring goods and services could jeopardize the City’s ability to
provide essential services; or,
iv) Pursuant to an enactment such as the Emergency Management Act.
6. Every invoice, requisition or payment request must be signed by a staff member with
Purchasing Authority for the City department in which the purchase pertains to.
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Methods of Purchasing
7. Direct Purchase Process
a) The direct purchase process allows goods and services to be purchased without a
competitive pricing requirement. This process may be used to obtain goods and services
when the value of the goods and services is less than $2,500 or one of the following
criteria exist:
i. Where a relationship has been established with an exclusive supplier provided
that the supplier continues to deliver best value;
ii. Where, at the discretion of the CAO, best value can be achieved through a
sole source purchase arrangement; or,
iii. Professional Services for assignments not exceeding $5,000.
8. Competitive Pricing or Quotation Process
a) A competitive pricing or quotation process shall be used when the costs of goods and
services exceeds $2,500, the criteria in Section 7 does not exist and the cost does not
exceed thresholds of Trade Agreements. This process includes obtaining price and
quality comparisons to ensure that the City receives the best value for their purchases
with the following guidelines:
i.
At the discretion of an employee with Purchasing Authority, the mechanism
used to acquire adequate price and quality comparisons may include verbal or
written quotations or proposals, depending on the nature of the purchase;
ii.
At the discretion of an employee with Purchasing Authority, the number of
vendors which are contacted to participate in the competitive pricing process
will depend on the nature of the purchase and will ensure that all appropriate
purchasing considerations have been taken into account;
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iii.
iv.
v.

v.

The competitive pricing process must be conducted in a manner that is fair
and equitable to the vendors whom are participating;
The final selection of the vendor may be made by the staff member with
Purchasing Authority up to the limits specified in this Policy; and,
All competitive pricing quotations for goods and services must be chosen by
Council if any of the following conditions exist:
a) the recommended goods or services to be procured is not the lowest bid
or tender offered;
b) the scope of the goods or services has changed from what was approved
in the budget;
c) the cost of the goods or services are over $500,000; or,
d) the CAO or Council specifically requests that the purchase be approved
through a motion in Council.
In the instances listed in v. a) – d), consideration will be given to the
recommendation from the staff member with Purchasing Authority and the
CAO.

9. Tender/Request for Proposal Process
a) The tender/request for proposal process is a formal method of obtaining competitive
prices and information on specified criteria and must be used for goods and services
exceeding thresholds of Trade Agreements and when otherwise deemed appropriate
with the following guidelines:
i.
The City’s tender/request for proposal process must comply with Trade
Agreements;
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ii.

iii.

The evaluation criteria in which bids/proposals are ranked and chosen may be
determined by the staff member with Purchasing Authority depending on the
nature of the good and services and the expertise required; and,
The successful proponent of all requests for proposals will be determined by
Council based on all the respondents, and consideration will be given to the
recommendation from the staff member with Purchasing Authority and the CAO.

Purchasing Considerations
10. Local Preference
a) The City of Brooks will provide opportunities to Local Businesses to encourage
development of Brooks’ business community based on the following guidelines, which
will apply to purchases not exceeding thresholds of the Trade Agreements:
i.
ii.

iii.

iv.
v.

Employees with Purchasing Authority are encouraged to make all direct
purchases through Local Businesses, when possible;
Employees with Purchasing Authority are encouraged to invite all qualified Local
Businesses to submit a quotation for goods and services as part of the
competitive pricing or quotation process;
When hiring a firm or organization to act as a prime contractor, employees with
Purchasing Authority may suggest and recommend Local Businesses to act as
suppliers and sub‐contractors;
Employees with Purchasing Authority may direct competitions to Local
Businesses only; and,
When considering price in the evaluation of submitted quotations or proposals,
preference will be given to Local Businesses by subtracting five percent (5%) up
to a maximum local preference discount of two thousand dollars ($2,000).
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11. Other Best Value Considerations
a) The City of Brooks will consider the overall cost in the purchasing of goods and services
and evaluate price and non‐price factors with every purchase. The following factors in
combination, but not necessarily listed in order of importance, shall be considered in
evaluating the value of any bid, in as far as it is practical to do so:
i. Price: based on the same delivery method, payment terms and discounts
offered;
ii. Record of performance: based on previous service and experience;
iii.
Quality: based on the fulfillment of purchasing needs and expectations;
iv.
Availability/Capacity: based on the ability of the vendor to start, undertake,
complete or deliver within set time constraints;
v.
Service: based on the ability of the vendor to provide timely service before,
during and after delivery or completion, including the warranty offered;
vi.
Local content: based on the economic advantage and community benefits gained
by using products and services sourced within the City of Brooks, County of
Newell, Province of Alberta and within Canada;
vii.
Standardization: based on the opportunity to purchase similar items in order to
reduce future costs; and,
viii.
Bulk Purchasing: based on the ability to reduce future or present costs through
the purchase of larger quantities or bulk packaging.
12. Environmental
a) Whenever feasible, the City will consider environmental impacts and sustainability.
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City of Brooks
2021 Variance Analysis - Operating
Favourable
(Unfavourable)
Function

Legislative

2021 YTD Actual

2021 Budget

% of Budget

Variance Explainations

0.00

0.00

Total Expenses

82,914.00

453,809.00

18.27% Low due to the timing of expenditures including Council Election

Total Revenue

32,943.10

72,300.00

45.56% High due to the timing of the MEMP grant received for Municipal
Energy Manager

Total Expenses

642,841.00

2,268,007.00

Total Revenue

Favourable

Favourable

Revenue

(Unfavourable)

(Unfavourable)

Variance

Expense Variance

Total Variance

0.00
370,895.00
$370,895.00

Administration

-39,356.90

28.34% Prepayment of Insurance which is higher than budget ($21,000)
and the prepayment of some Software licensing offset the timing of
other expenses including Corporate Safety billings.

1,625,166.00
$1,585,809.10

Fiscal/Taxation/Financial Services

369,010.00

19,082,043.00

1.93% Low due to property taxes not being levied

1,377,638.00

5,049,232.00

27.28% Slightly low due to the timing of requisitions

Total Revenue

43,247.00

971,691.00

Total Expenses

129,367.00

3,184,020.00

Total Revenue

13,320.00

333,700.00

Total Expenses

222,754.00

724,948.00

Total Revenue

12,491.00

55,100.00

Total Expenses

95,089.00

441,587.00

0.00

600.00

12,123.00

73,646.00

0.00

0.00

57,017.00

261,080.00

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

-18,713,033.00
3,671,594.00
-$15,041,439.00

Policing

4.45% Low due to the timing of Provincial Grants

-928,444.00

4.06% Low due to the timing of quarterly policing contract

3,054,653.00
$2,126,209.00

Fire

3.99% Low Due to timing of revenues, including County grants, collected

-320,380.00

30.73% Slightly high due to the prepayment of Insurance and the Newell
911 contract which was lower ($10,000) than budget

502,194.00
$181,814.00

Bylaw

22.67% Low Due to timing of revenues collected

-42,609.00

21.53% Low due to the timing of expenditures offset by prepaid Insurance
for the year.

346,498.00
$303,889.00

Engineering

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

0.00%

-600.00

16.46% Low due to the timing of expenditures

61,523.00
$60,923.00

Equipment Maintenance

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

0.00
21.84% Slightly low due to lower contracted repairs to date

204,063.00
$204,063.00

Favourable

Function

Transportation

2021 YTD Actual

2021 Budget

% of Budget

Variance Explainations

Total Revenue

11,863.00

1,043,694.00

1.14% Low Due to timing of revenues collected including the Repaving
Tax Levy

Total Expenses

425,233.00

2,266,608.00

18.76% Low due to the timing of expenditures, offset by the prepayment of
Insurance

Total Revenue

6,731.50

29,314.00

22.96% Slightly low due to timing of Airport fuel sales

Total Expenses

11,784.46

54,953.00

21.44% Slightly high due to the timing of fuel purchases for resale

Total Revenue

451,474.00

3,426,152.00

13.18% Water charges for March will not be billed until April/May

Total Expenses

489,726.00

2,899,249.00

16.89% Low due to the timing of expenditures offset by the prepayment of
insurance

0.00

171,766.00

0.00% Surface irrigation billing to be levied in May

Total Expenses

11,559.00

138,294.00

8.36% Low due to the timing of expenditures

Total Revenue

204,864.00

1,488,628.00

13.76%

Total Expenses

204,404.00

1,213,570.00

16.84% Low due to the timing of expenditures offset by higher Insurance
costs regarding lift stations (environmental impairment liability)

Total Revenue

188,513.00

1,519,860.00

12.40% Solid Waste charges for March will not be billed until April/May

Total Expenses

183,307.00

1,376,881.00

13.31% Low due to the timing of expenditures including the NRSWMA
Invoice not yet received

Total Revenue

224,914.00

663,876.00

33.88% Slightly high due to timing of revenues collected from participating
Municipalities

Total Expenses

482,627.00

775,268.00

62.25% High due to the timing of payments to FCSS

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

4,060.00
3,403.00

36,700.00
85,813.00

(Unfavourable)

Favourable

Favourable

Revenue

(Unfavourable)

(Unfavourable)

Variance

Expense Variance

Total Variance

-1,031,831.00
1,841,375.00
$809,544.00

Airport

-22,582.50
43,168.54
$20,586.04

Water

-2,974,678.00
2,409,523.00
-$565,155.00

Surface Irrigation

Total Revenue

-171,766.00
126,735.00
-$45,031.00

Sewer

Sanitary Sewer charges for March will not be billed until April/May

-1,283,764.00
1,009,166.00
-$274,598.00

Garbage/Recycling

-1,331,347.00
1,193,574.00
-$137,773.00

FCSS

-438,962.00
292,641.00
-$146,321.00

Cemetery

11.06% Lower prorated plot sales than budgeted
3.97% Low due to the timing of expenditures

-32,640.00
82,410.00
$49,770.00

Favourable

Function

Building/Planning/Development

2021 YTD Actual

2021 Budget

% of Budget

Variance Explainations

8,837.00

133,370.00

Total Expenses

160,520.00

417,357.00

Total Revenue

11,398.00

18,000.00

Total Expenses

52,005.00

180,956.00

28.74% Slightly high mostly due to prepaid insurance and Salaries for the
medicine Hat Shuttle to be offset with donations

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

0.00
107,651.00

170,753.00
340,015.00

0.00% County contributions not yet received
31.66% High due to the timing of expenditures including contributions to
NRTA and Dr. Recruitment Rental Subsidies

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

0.00
192.00

1,000.00
15,000.00

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

3,558.00
5,665.00

5,844.00
0.00

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

0.00
17,102.00

0.00
37,097.00

Total Revenue

17,398.00

859,136.00

Total Expenses

524,106.01

3,506,264.00

0.00

37,550.00

Total Expenses

214,013.00

1,383,289.00

Total Revenue

48,264.00

131,886.00

Total Expenses

254,459.16

1,234,989.00

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

1,652,885.60
5,767,499.63

30,252,963.00
28,381,932.00

Total Revenue

6.63% Low Due to timing of revenues and the waiving of Development
Permit fees

(Unfavourable)

Favourable

Favourable

Revenue

(Unfavourable)

(Unfavourable)

Variance

Expense Variance

Total Variance

-124,533.00

38.46% High due to the prepayment of the GIS contract and the 2nd
quarter of ORRSC Planning Services

256,837.00
$132,304.00

Handibus

63.32% High due to donations collected for the "Save the Shuttle
Campaign" and fees for the Medicine Hat Shuttle

-6,602.00
128,951.00
$122,349.00

Economic Dev & Tourism

-170,753.00
232,364.00
$61,611.00

Environmental Advisory Committee

0.00% No donations received
1.28% Low due to the timing of expenditures

-1,000.00
14,808.00
$13,808.00

Land Service/Housing/Rentals

60.88% High due to the timing of lease revenues received
0.00% Rental expense not anticipated in the budget

-2,286.00
-5,665.00
-$7,951.00

Land

0.00%
46.10% Timing of debenture interest payments on land developments

0.00
19,995.00
$19,995.00

Recreation

2.03% Lower revenues than budgeted due to facility closures in 2021

-841,738.00

14.95% Lower expenses than budgeted due to facility closures offset by
the timing of annual insurance costs

2,982,157.99
$2,140,419.99

Parks

Total Revenue

0.00% Low Due to timing of revenues collected

-37,550.00

15.47% Lower expenses than budgeted due to the timing of seasonal
expenses offset by the timing of annual insurance costs

1,169,276.00
$1,131,726.00

Facilities/Culture

36.60% Slightly high due to the timing of rental income received and Arts,
culture & Heritage Centre rentals not anticipated $2,100
20.60% Lower expenses than budgeted due to timing of expenditures

-83,622.00
980,529.84
$896,907.84

GRAND TOTAL

5.46%
20.32%
-$5,985,645.03

City of Brooks
2021 Variance to Budget
Capital Expenditures
Favourable
(Unfavourable)
Department/Project

2021 YTD Actual

2021 Budget

% of Budget

Variance Explainantions

Variance

Administration
Network Switches
Council Electronics

0.00
24,178.14

80,000.00
25,000.00

Total

24,178.14

105,000.00

23.03%

80,000.00

Fire Cheilfs Primary Truck Replacement
SCBA Replacements
AFRRCS Radios

0.00
0.00
41,432.57

61,425.00
26,500.00
40,570.00

0.00%
0.00%
102.13%

61,425.00
26,500.00
-862.57

Total

41,432.57

128,495.00

32.24%

87,062.43

Fleet Replacement

0.00

47,500.00

0.00%

47,500.00

Total

0.00

47,500.00

0.00%

47,500.00

9,794.80

11,000.00

89.04%

1,205.20

91,659.79
0.00
101,454.59

1,780,959.00
32,000.00
1,823,959.00

0.00% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020 (to be spent in 2022)
BA 2021-05

80,000.00
821.86

Fire

Municipal Enforcement

Engineering
Color Plotter/Scanner
Street Improvement Project
Solar Crosswalk Installations
Total

5.15% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020
0.00%
5.56%

1,689,299.21
32,000.00
1,722,504.41

Favourable
(Unfavourable)
Department/Project

2021 YTD Actual

2021 Budget

% of Budget

Variance Explainantions

Variance

Transportation
Sulair Air Compressor Replacement
Shop Compressor Replacement
Line Lazer Replacement
84' Bobcat Broom Attachment
60' Bobcat Broom Attachment
JD Backhoe Replacement
Traffic Controller Replacement Program
Fleet Replacement
Total

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
37,319.83
37,319.83

40,000.00
26,000.00
12,000.00
8,000.00
10,500.00
190,000.00
15,000.00
37,500.00
339,000.00

11,699.50
0.00
11,699.50

1,894,653.00
38,500.00
1,933,153.00

0.00
0.00

150,000.00
150,000.00

0.00%
0.00%

150,000.00
150,000.00

0.00
0.00

61,000.00
61,000.00

0.00%
0.00%

61,000.00
61,000.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
99.52%
11.01%

40,000.00
26,000.00
12,000.00
8,000.00
10,500.00
190,000.00
15,000.00
180.17
301,680.17

Storm
A To Zed Storm Project
Sound Vibes Storm Project
Total

0.62% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020 and BA 2021-04
0.00%
0.61%

1,882,953.50
38,500.00
1,921,453.50

Water
Water Main Replacement
Total

Surface Irrigation
Irrigation to Francophone School
Total

Sanitary Sewer
Sunnylea Lift Station
Meadowbrook Lift Station
Hort Station Connection Sewer Main
Sewer main replacement
Total

0.00

314,000.00

0.00% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020

314,000.00

7,260.50

310,876.00

2.34% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020

303,615.50

1,217,845.83

3,645,960.00

33.40% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020

2,428,114.17

0.00
1,225,106.33

150,000.00
4,420,836.00

0.00%
27.71%

150,000.00
3,195,729.67

Favourable
(Unfavourable)
Department/Project

2021 YTD Actual

2021 Budget

% of Budget

Variance Explainantions

Variance

Waste Management
Labrie Garbage Truck Replacement
95 Gallon/367 Litre Roll-out Containers
1100L Bin Replacements
Total

0.00
0.00
850.00
850.00

340,000.00
51,200.00
102,500.00
493,700.00

0.00
28,000.00
0.00
28,000.00

35,002.00
41,647.00
175,000.00
251,649.00

0.00% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020
67.23% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020
0.00%
11.13%

35,002.00
13,647.00
175,000.00
223,649.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

140,045.00
100,000.00
120,000.00
10,000.00
370,045.00

0.00% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020
0.00%
0.00% BA 2021-02 Carry Foraward Budget from 2020
0.00%
0.00%

140,045.00
100,000.00
120,000.00
10,000.00
370,045.00

55,770.00
55,770.00

55,770.00
55,770.00

100.00%
100.00%

0.00
0.00

$1,525,810.96

$10,180,107.00

14.99%

$8,653,474.18

0.00%
0.00%
0.83%
0.17%

340,000.00
51,200.00
101,650.00
492,850.00

Recreation
Fitness Equipment Replacement Program
BMS Replacement for JBS Canada Centre
Olympia Ice Resurfacer
Total

Parks
Mower Replacement Program
Linear Trails & Beautification Program
Playground equipment replacement
Griffin Skating Rink - Year Round Use
Total

Facilities
CCC Building Window Replacement
Total

GRAND TOTAL CAPITAL

CITY OF BROOKS
BYLAW NO. 20/04 21/09
A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF BROOKS IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA TO PROVIDE
STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS FOR OUTDOOR PORTABLE ADVERTISING.
WHEREAS, the Municipal Government Act RSA 2000, c.M-26 and regulations as amended,
provides that Council may pass Bylaws respecting people, activities and things in, or near a
public place and the safety, health and welfare of people;
AND WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Brooks deems it necessary and appropriate to
control and regulate the placement of Portable Signs;
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Brooks duly assembled enacts as follows:
1.

BYLAW NAME
100. This Bylaw may be referred to as the “Portable Signs” Bylaw.

2.

DEFINITIONS
200.

In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires:

201. “A-Frame Sign” (sandwich board) means an A-shaped sign which is set upon the
ground and has no external supporting structure;
202. “Act” means the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, c M-26 and regulations
made under the Municipal Government Act as amended or repealed and replaced
from time to time;
203. “Advertisement” means any method, device or representation, used to call
attention to or identify any matter, object, event or person;
204. “Approving Authority” means the Development Officer, Peace Officer or his/her
duly authorized representative;
205. “Authorized Sign Distributor” means any person that has been designated as
such by a resolution of Council;
206. “Business Frontage” means:
207. Any side of a separate property or building which abuts a public road, other
than a lane; or,
208. In the case of individual businesses or tenants within a building, that portion of
the frontage as defined above, occupied by such individual businesses or
tenants.
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209. “Bylaw” means the City of Brooks Bylaw No. 20/04 21/09 as may be amended from
time to time;
210. "Chief Administrative Officer" means the Chief Administrative Officer of the City
of Brooks regardless of any subsequent title that may be conferred on that officer
by Council or statute, or his/her designate;
211. “City" means the City of Brooks, a Municipal Corporation in the Province of Alberta,
or the geographical area contained within the boundaries of the City of Brooks, as
the context may require;
212. “Community Event Advertising” means advertising that promotes a community
group or event that serves the City of Brooks or surrounding area in a not-for-profit
capacity;
213. “Copy” means text or images displayed on a sign.
214. “Corner Visibility Triangle” means the triangular area formed on a corner lot by:
215.

two curb lines (where there is a curb) and a straight line which intersects them
7.5 metres (24.6 feet) from the corner where they meet; or,

216.

two property lines (where there is not a curb) and a straight line which
intersects them 5.5 metres (18.0 feet) from the corner where they meet.

Figure 1 – Corner Visibility Triangle

217. “Council” means the Municipal Council of the City of Brooks;
218. “Development Officer” means the person appointed as Development Officer by
the Council of the City of Brooks;
219. “Display” means the construction, erection, installation, addition, repair, alteration
or relocation of a sign;
220. “Grade” means the average ground surface elevation at the sign location, as
determined by the approving authority;
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221. “Height of Sign” means the vertical distance measured from the highest point of
the sign to the average grade elevation;
222. “Highway” means any thoroughfare, Highway, road, trail, avenue, parkway,
driveway, viaduct, lane, alley, square, bridge, causeway, trestleway or other place
or any part of any of them, whether publicly or privately owned, that the public is
ordinarily entitled or permitted to use for the passage or parking of vehicles and
includes a Sidewalk, including a boulevard adjacent to the Sidewalk, if a ditch lies
adjacent to and parallel with the roadway, the ditch, and if a Highway right of way is
contained between fences or between a fence and one side of the roadway, all the
land between the fences, or all the land between the fence and the edge of the
roadway, as the case may be, but does not include a place declared by regulation
not to be a highway as defined in The Traffic Safety Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. T-6;
223. “Landscaped Boulevard” means any landscaped area beside a City Highway that
is maintained by the City of Brooks;
224. “Owner” shall mean:
225. When referring to the Owner of property:
226. A person or party that is shown as registered Owner of the property;
227. A person or party for whom the real property is held in trust; or,
228. A Lessee of real property.
229.

When referring to the Owner of a Portable Sign:
230. The lessor, licensor or distributor of the sign that retains ownership of
or other proprietary interest in the sign;

231. “Peace Officer” means a Bylaw Enforcement Officer appointed by the City of
Brooks pursuant to Section 555 of the Municipal Government Act and for the
purpose of enforcement of this Bylaw, also includes a Community Peace Officer or
a member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police;
232. “Portable Sign” means any sign which is mounted on a stand or other support
structure which is designed in such a manner that the sign can be readily relocated
but does not include A-Frame signs;
233. “Sidewalk” means that part of a Highway especially adapted to the use of or
ordinarily used by pedestrians, and includes that part of a Highway between the
curb line (or the edge of the roadway where there is no curb line) and the adjacent
property line, whether or not it is paved or improved;
234. “Sign Area” means the entire area of a Portable Sign, measured to the outer
perimeter of the Portable Sign, but does not include the supports, where applicable;
235. “Third Party Advertising” means content on a sign which directs attention to
products sold or services provided which cannot be considered as the principal
product sold or principal services provided on the premises at which the sign is
located but does not include Community Event Advertising;
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236. “Violation Tag” means a tag or similar document issued by the City pursuant to
the Act;
237. “Violation Ticket” means a ticket issued pursuant to Part II of the Provincial
Offences Procedures Act, RSA 2000, c P-34, as amended and any Regulations
thereto.
3. EXEMPTIONS
300.

Advertisements specified in this Section are deemed permitted and may be
displayed without application being made for a permit, provided that: any such
Advertisements specified below shall be subject to the provisions of this Bylaw, all
other orders, Bylaws and regulations affecting such Advertisements.
301.

A-Frame signs, provided that:
302.
303.
304.
305.

The sign is limited to one (1) per business;
The sign is not illuminated;
The sign shall not contain Third Party Advertising;
The sign shall not obstruct pedestrian traffic in the
opinion of the Approving Authority;
306. The overall height shall not be greater than
1.22 metres (4 feet) above the Grade;
307. The maximum width of the sign shall not
exceed 0.92 metres (3 feet); and,
308. The sign shall not be placed on City owned property or a
Landscaped Boulevard; however, Sidewalks shall be exempted.
309.

Notwithstanding Subsections 306 and 307 above, within the Business
Revitalization Zone (BRZ), as shown in Schedule “C” attached to and forming part
of this Bylaw, the sign must be:
310. Of a height no greater than 0.92 metres (3 feet) above grade;
311. No wider than 0.61 metres (2 feet); and,
312. Placed as close to the building as possible.

313. Notices relating to the sale, lease or rental of the building or land on which they
are placed, provided that:
314. The notice shall not be illuminated;
315. Each notice shall not exceed 0.6m2 in residential areas. Where the
use on the property is an apartment dwelling with ten (10) or more
units, the notice shall not exceed 4.6m2. In commercial and
industrial districts, the notice shall not exceed 3.0 m2; and,
316. There shall be a limit of one (1) notice per property line with
frontage on a public road.
4. PROHIBITED SIGNS
400.

Unless otherwise allowed by Council, no Portable Sign shall be displayed
anywhere within the City which:
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401.

Involves the use of revolving lights or beacons or emits amplified
sounds or music;

402.

Will, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, block the natural light or
the view of an adjacent building;

403.

Will, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, obstruct free and clear
vision of vehicular traffic or may be confused with any authorized traffic
sign, signal or device;

404.

Is, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, vulgar, obscene, or would
be offensive to the public; and/or,

405.

Is illuminated and/or animated.

5. APPLICATION AND PERMITS
500.

504.

No Portable Sign shall be displayed or erected within the boundaries of the City,
except as permitted in Section 3 of this Bylaw, unless an application for the display
of the Portable Sign has been approved by the Approving Authority.
501.

A permit is required to relocate a Portable Sign as per Subsection 716;

502.

A permit is not required to clean, repaint or repair an existing Portable
Sign; and,

503.

A permit is not required to change copy on a Portable Sign provided no
other alterations or changes are made.

Application for a permit, pursuant to this Bylaw, shall be made out on the official
form, be accompanied by the fee prescribed by Council and provide the following
information:
505.

The legal description and civic address of the property, building or
structure upon or to which the Portable Sign is, or is to be displayed or
attached;

506.

The sign manufacturer’s name and address;

507.

The applicant’s name and address;

508.

A letter of authorization and/or a signature on the application form from
the Owner of the property or building, or an authorized agent;

509.

A site plan showing the proposed location of the Portable Sign in
relation to the property lines;

510.

Size and location of all existing Portable Signs on the property;

Bylaw 21/09

Page 6 of 16
511.

Whether the Portable Sign will be in one (1) permanent location or will
be moved from one (1) location to another from time to time; and,

512.

A scale drawing of the Portable Sign showing:
513.
All dimensions of the Portable Sign structure;
514.
The area of the copy face(s);
515.
The design of the copy face;
516.
The type of construction and finish to be utilized; and,
517.
The method of supporting or attaching the Portable Sign,
including structural and footing details.

518.

The Approving Authority shall issue a permit if, in their opinion, the application
complies with the provisions of this Bylaw and any other regulations to which the
proposed Portable Sign must comply.

519.

The Approving Authority may issue a permit subject to conditions.

520.

The Approving Authority may refuse a permit for any Portable Sign, if, in their
opinion:
521. The display of such Portable Sign would be contrary to the provisions
of this Bylaw;
522.

The information submitted regarding the Portable Sign is insufficient to
enable them to adequately rule on the application; and/or,

523.

The Portable Sign may interfere or otherwise obstruct traffic control
devices or in any way interfere with visibility of vehicular traffic.

524.

An annual permit is required for each Portable Sign and permit fees are due and
payable on or before December 31st of each year. A late payment fee will be added
to the prescribed fee set out in Schedule "A" hereto and forming part of this Bylaw
for each Portable Sign within the City to which the annual permit fee has not been
paid before January 31st of the current year.

525.

Every Portable Sign will be issued a yearly sticker to be attached to the Portable
Sign in a visible location once the applicable annual permit fees are paid. The
Licensee shall place the sticker on the corresponding Portable Sign.

526.

Should an annual permit be issued after June 30th, in any year, the new permit fee
shall be one-half of the appropriate annual permit fee.

527.

In the event of a Portable Sign being displayed before an annual permit has been
obtained, double the permit fee shall be charged as prescribed in Schedule “B”.

528.

No person shall display a Portable Sign differing from the approved information
within the approved permit. If, during the process of the work, the applicant desires
to deviate in any way from the terms of the original approved permit, they shall
notify the Approving Authority and submit amended drawings, and, if necessary,
shall make application for approval of the plans as amended.
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6. APPEAL PROCEDURE
600.

605.

An appeal may be lodged with Council by a person applying for a permit when the
Approving Authority:
601. Refuses to issue a permit;
602.

Fails to issue a permit within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of the
completed application;

603.

Issues a permit subject to conditions; and/or,

604.

Issues an order pursuant to this Bylaw.

An appeal to Council shall be lodged by serving a written notice of appeal to
Council through the Chief Administrative Officer within fourteen (14) days after:
606.

The person is notified of the order or decision or the issuance of the
permit; and/or,

607.

If no decision is made with respect to the application for a sign permit,
the fifteen (15) business day period referred to in Subsection 602
expires.

608.

Council may, when considering an appeal, confirm, revoke or vary the order,
decision or permit or any condition attached to any of them or make or substitute
an order, decision or permit of its own.

609.

Any complaints received regarding Portable Signs, from any person, other than
the Portable Sign Owner, will be forwarded to the Development Officer.

610.

The Development Officer shall review the complaint and make the determination
as to what, if anything, shall be done with the Portable Sign(s) that is the subject
of the complaint and shall notify the complainant in writing.

611.

Should the complainant disagree with the determination of the Development
Officer, the complainant may, in writing, request Council to consider an appeal of
the Development Officer’s determination.

612.

Council will consider each request and either allow or dismiss the appeal. If Council
allows the appeal, and upon hearing the appeal, it may confirm, reverse or vary
the decision of the Development Officer.

7. REGULATIONS
700. The provisions of this Bylaw shall apply to the issuance of permits or orders
respecting the display of any Portable Sign(s) within the boundaries of the City.
701.

On a commercial or industrial parcel, Portable Signs are limited to one
(1) per property or business, whether the Portable Sign is displaying
on-site business information or Third Party Advertising;
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702.

In addition to the provisions in Subsection 701, Community Event
Advertising is limited to one (1) per parcel;

703.

The area of the Portable Sign is not greater than 5.0 m2;

704.

The height of the Portable Sign does not exceed 2.5 metres (8.2 feet);

705.

No part of the Portable Sign shall project beyond the property line
unless written permission is obtained from the Approving Authority;

706.

The Portable Sign shall not display Third Party Advertising;

707.

A Portable Sign or sign structure shall not be located or extend
horizontally closer than 0.5 metres (1.6 feet) from the curb line;

708.

No Portable Sign shall be located within the Corner Visibility Triangle;

709.

The required distance from overhead power and service lines as set
forth in provincial regulations shall be maintained for all Portable Signs;

710.

All Portable Signs shall be maintained in a satisfactory manner. All
Portable Sign Area, background and copy shall be continuously
maintained in clean, readable condition. There shall be no danger from
structural members or fixtures;

711.

A Portable Sign shall not obstruct door openings, passageways,
walkways or fire escapes;

712.

All Portable Signs shall be designed and constructed in accordance with
good engineering practice and in conformity with the requirements of
this Bylaw and Alberta Safety Codes Regulations wherever applicable;

Commented [AR1]: Renumber entire Section if this is removed.
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713.

No Portable Sign or sign support shall be placed on a property unless
the landowner or his representative has granted permission to do so;

714.

Portable Signs shall not be permitted on City owned property or a
Landscaped Boulevard, with the exception of:
715.

716.

The JBS Canada Centre (323 1st Street East, legally described
as Plan 3230AM, Block D) for the duration of special events
or programs held on the property. Such signs shall be
removed within seventy-two (72) hours following the special
event or program; or,
Signs containing information regarding City events and
programs. Such signs shall be removed within seventy-two
(72) hours following the cessation of the special event or
program.

717.

If a Portable Sign is to be moved to a new location, the Development
Officer must be informed in writing. The sign owner shall not move the
sign to a new location without approval from the Development Officer;
and,

718.

Notwithstanding Subsection 716, an Authorized Sign Distributor may
relocate a Portable Sign without providing notice to the Development
Officer, provided that the Authorized Sign Distributor has purchased the
required number of permits and all other provisions of this Bylaw are
adhered to.

8. VARIANCES
800.

Where there are requests for minor variances, the Development Officer shall have
the authority to approve such requests. Minor variances are defined as:
801.

Any application from a lessee, in good standing with the City, that is
applying to place a Portable Sign on the portion of City owned property
that they lease; or,

802. Any application for a non-profit special event, where:
803.
The event is being held on City owned property;
804.
There is a valid special event permit for the event, as per
Bylaw 14/03, as may be amended or replaced from time to
time; and,
805.
The Portable Sign will be placed on City owned property
where the event is being held; or,
806.

Any application to have directional signage placed on City owned
property or a Landscaped Boulevard, for a non-profit special event
being held on City owned property, the Silversage Agribition Grounds
or Kinsmen Rodeo Grounds, provided that the Portable Sign(s) shall:
807.
not exceed two (2) in quantity;
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808.
809.
810.

811.

not be installed sooner than two (2) weeks prior to the event;
and,
be removed seventy-two (72) hours after the event.

Any application, where in the opinion of the Development Officer, the
variance conforms with the intent of the Bylaw and has no material
impact.

Requests outside the parameters defined in Subsections 801 – 810 shall be
considered major variances and Council may consider such requests, according
to the merits of each case.

9. REMOVAL OR REPAIR OF SIGNS
900.

If any Portable Sign is erected without an approved permit, an approved permit
lapses, a Portable Sign no longer complies with the terms of this Bylaw or a
Portable Sign no longer complies with the terms of an approved permit, the
Approving Authority may issue an order directing the Owner to remove, repair or
modify the Portable Sign and the party or parties so ordered shall:
901.

Remove, repair or modify such Portable Sign and all related structural
components in accordance with the terms of the order within fifteen (15)
days from the date of receipt of such notice from the Approving
Authority; and,

902.

Restore the immediate area around the Portable Sign, to the
satisfaction of the Approving Authority, including the ground or any
building to which the Portable Sign was attached, as close as possible
to its original form prior to the installation of the Portable Sign.

903.

If a person or party fails or refuses to comply with an order issued by the
Approving Authority pursuant to the terms of this Bylaw, the Approving Authority,
or person appointed by the Approving Authority, may enter on the land or
premises and take any action necessary to carry out the order. Where the
Approving Authority or a person appointed by it carries out an order, the costs
and expenses incurred by the City in carrying out the order shall be a debt due
and owing to the City by the person or party to whom the notice was given and in
the case where the notice is given to an Owner of the land and premises on which
the Portable Sign is located, Council may cause the costs and expenses incurred
in carrying out the order to be placed on the tax roll as an additional tax against
the property concerned and the amount shall be collected in the same manner
as taxes on land.

904.

In the event the Portable Sign is removed by an agent of the City, the Portable
Sign will not be released to the Owner until a valid Portable Sign permit can be
obtained and the assigned penalties as prescribed in Schedule “B” have been
paid. Should the Portable Sign remain unclaimed by the Owner for a period of
six (6) months; the Portable Sign may be sold or destroyed.
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10. PENALTIES AND OFFENCES:
1000.

Any person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw is guilty of an offence
and shall pay a specified penalty as outlined in Schedule “B” attached.

1001.

Any person designated as an Authorized Sign Distributor may have their
designation revoked by Council if the Authorized Sign Distributor contravenes
any provisions of this Bylaw.

11. ENFORCEMENT:
1100.

A Peace Officer is for the purposes of enforcement of this Bylaw, a Designated
Officer of the City.

1101.

Any person who breaches any provision of the Bylaw is guilty of an offence and
liable:
1102. upon the issuance of a Violation Tag to the specified penalty as listed
on Schedule “B” attached to and forming part of this Bylaw; or,
1103. upon summary conviction to a fine of not less than the amount specified
on Schedule “B” attached to and forming part of this Bylaw for each
offence, exclusive of costs.

1104.

A Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a Violation Tag to
any person who has contravened any provision of this Bylaw.

1105.

A Violation Tag shall be deemed to be sufficiently served if:
1106. served personally on the accused; or,
1107. mailed to the address of the registered Owner of the property
concerned or to the person concerned; or,
1108. served personally upon the manager, secretary, receptionist or other
officer or person apparently in charge at any premises of a licensee
accused, or by mailing a copy to such licensee by registered mail.

1109.

A Violation Tag shall state:
1110. the name of the Person;
1111. the municipal or legal description of the land on or near where the
offence took place;
1112. the offence;
1113. the penalty for the offence set out on Schedule “B” of this Bylaw;
1114. that the penalty shall be paid within fourteen (14) days from the
issuance of the Violation Tag; and,
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1115. any other information deemed necessary by the Chief Administrative
Officer or by the provisions of the Act or the Provincial Offences
Procedure Act, RSA 2000, c P-34 as amended.
1116. Where a breach of this Bylaw is of a continuing nature, further Violation
Tags may be issued by a Peace Officer and the offender shall be
subject to a penalty for each subsequent offence as outlined in
Schedule “B”.
1117. Where a Violation Tag has been issued for breach of any provision of
this Bylaw, the Person to whom the Violation Tag is issued may, in lieu
of being prosecuted for the offence, pay to the City the penalty specified
on the Violation Tag.
1118. Nothing in the Bylaw shall prevent a Peace Officer from immediately
issuing a Violation Ticket.
1119. If a person upon whom a Violation Tag is served above fails to pay the
voluntary payment within the time specified, a Peace Officer is hereby
authorized and empowered to issue a Violation Ticket pursuant to Part
II of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, RSA 2000, c P-34, as
amended, or as repealed and replaced from time to time.
1120. Any person who is guilty by way of summary conviction of an offense
under the provisions of this Bylaw shall be liable for a fine of not less
than the amount specified for that particular breach of this Bylaw, plus
associated court costs pursuant to Part II of the Provincial Offences
Procedure Act, RSA 2000, c P-34, as amended, or as repealed from
time to time.

12. SEVERABILITY:
1200.

It is the intention of Council that each separate provision of this Bylaw shall be
deemed independent of all other provisions herein and it is the further intention
of Council that if any provision of this Bylaw is declared invalid, all other provisions
herein shall remain valid and enforceable.

13. REPEAL OF BYLAW
1300.

That Bylaw 12/28, 13/09, 15/11, 16/11 and 16/12, 20/04 and amendments thereto
be hereby repealed.

14. EFFECTIVE DATE:
1400.

This Bylaw shall come into force and take effect on the date of final passing.
Read a first time this _____ day of _________, 2021.
Read a second time this _____ day of __________, 2021.
Read a third time and finally passed this _____ day of ___________, 2021.
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Mayor
Chief Administrative Officer
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BYLAW NO. 21/09
SCHEDULE "A"
PORTABLE SIGN PERMIT FEES

1.

Portable Signs

$80.00/year

2.

Portable Signs for registered not-for-profit organizations

$40.00/year

3.

Renewal - Late Payment Fee (As per Subsection 524)

$50.00
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BYLAW NO. 21/09
SCHEDULE “B”
SPECIFIED PENALTIES

Bylaw
Subsection:

Offence Description:

Penalty:

527

Failure to hold a valid Portable Sign permit
before placement of the Portable Sign

Double the Permit Fee

1101

Contravention of this Bylaw

$200.00
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BYLAW NO. 21/09
SCHEDULE “C”
BUSINESS REVITALIZATION ZONE

CITY OF BROOKS
BYLAW NO. 21/09
A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF BROOKS IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA TO PROVIDE
STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS FOR OUTDOOR PORTABLE ADVERTISING.
WHEREAS, the Municipal Government Act RSA 2000, c.M-26 and regulations as amended,
provides that Council may pass Bylaws respecting people, activities and things in, or near a
public place and the safety, health and welfare of people;
AND WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Brooks deems it necessary and appropriate to
control and regulate the placement of Portable Signs;
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Brooks duly assembled enacts as follows:
1.

BYLAW NAME
100. This Bylaw may be referred to as the “Portable Signs” Bylaw.

2.

DEFINITIONS
200.

In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires:

201. “A-Frame Sign” (sandwich board) means an A-shaped sign which is set upon the
ground and has no external supporting structure;
202. “Act” means the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, c M-26 and regulations
made under the Municipal Government Act as amended or repealed and replaced
from time to time;
203. “Advertisement” means any method, device or representation, used to call
attention to or identify any matter, object, event or person;
204. “Approving Authority” means the Development Officer, Peace Officer or his/her
duly authorized representative;
205. “Authorized Sign Distributor” means any person that has been designated as
such by a resolution of Council;
206. “Business Frontage” means:
207. Any side of a separate property or building which abuts a public road, other
than a lane; or,
208. In the case of individual businesses or tenants within a building, that portion of
the frontage as defined above, occupied by such individual businesses or
tenants.
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209. “Bylaw” means the City of Brooks Bylaw No. 21/09 as may be amended from time
to time;
210. "Chief Administrative Officer" means the Chief Administrative Officer of the City
of Brooks regardless of any subsequent title that may be conferred on that officer
by Council or statute, or his/her designate;
211. “City" means the City of Brooks, a Municipal Corporation in the Province of Alberta,
or the geographical area contained within the boundaries of the City of Brooks, as
the context may require;
212. “Community Event Advertising” means advertising that promotes a community
group or event that serves the City of Brooks or surrounding area in a not-for-profit
capacity;
213. “Copy” means text or images displayed on a sign.
214. “Corner Visibility Triangle” means the triangular area formed on a corner lot by:
215.

two curb lines (where there is a curb) and a straight line which intersects them
7.5 metres (24.6 feet) from the corner where they meet; or,

216.

two property lines (where there is not a curb) and a straight line which
intersects them 5.5 metres (18.0 feet) from the corner where they meet.

Figure 1 – Corner Visibility Triangle

217. “Council” means the Municipal Council of the City of Brooks;
218. “Development Officer” means the person appointed as Development Officer by
the Council of the City of Brooks;
219. “Display” means the construction, erection, installation, addition, repair, alteration
or relocation of a sign;
220. “Grade” means the average ground surface elevation at the sign location, as
determined by the approving authority;
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221. “Height of Sign” means the vertical distance measured from the highest point of
the sign to the average grade elevation;
222. “Highway” means any thoroughfare, Highway, road, trail, avenue, parkway,
driveway, viaduct, lane, alley, square, bridge, causeway, trestleway or other place
or any part of any of them, whether publicly or privately owned, that the public is
ordinarily entitled or permitted to use for the passage or parking of vehicles and
includes a Sidewalk, including a boulevard adjacent to the Sidewalk, if a ditch lies
adjacent to and parallel with the roadway, the ditch, and if a Highway right of way is
contained between fences or between a fence and one side of the roadway, all the
land between the fences, or all the land between the fence and the edge of the
roadway, as the case may be, but does not include a place declared by regulation
not to be a highway as defined in The Traffic Safety Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. T-6;
223. “Landscaped Boulevard” means any landscaped area beside a City Highway that
is maintained by the City of Brooks;
224. “Owner” shall mean:
225. When referring to the Owner of property:
226. A person or party that is shown as registered Owner of the property;
227. A person or party for whom the real property is held in trust; or,
228. A Lessee of real property.
229.

When referring to the Owner of a Portable Sign:
230. The lessor, licensor or distributor of the sign that retains ownership of
or other proprietary interest in the sign;

231. “Peace Officer” means a Bylaw Enforcement Officer appointed by the City of
Brooks pursuant to Section 555 of the Municipal Government Act and for the
purpose of enforcement of this Bylaw, also includes a Community Peace Officer or
a member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police;
232. “Portable Sign” means any sign which is mounted on a stand or other support
structure which is designed in such a manner that the sign can be readily relocated
but does not include A-Frame signs;
233. “Sidewalk” means that part of a Highway especially adapted to the use of or
ordinarily used by pedestrians, and includes that part of a Highway between the
curb line (or the edge of the roadway where there is no curb line) and the adjacent
property line, whether or not it is paved or improved;
234. “Sign Area” means the entire area of a Portable Sign, measured to the outer
perimeter of the Portable Sign, but does not include the supports, where applicable;
235. “Third Party Advertising” means content on a sign which directs attention to
products sold or services provided which cannot be considered as the principal
product sold or principal services provided on the premises at which the sign is
located but does not include Community Event Advertising;
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236. “Violation Tag” means a tag or similar document issued by the City pursuant to
the Act;
237. “Violation Ticket” means a ticket issued pursuant to Part II of the Provincial
Offences Procedures Act, RSA 2000, c P-34, as amended and any Regulations
thereto.
3. EXEMPTIONS
300.

Advertisements specified in this Section are deemed permitted and may be
displayed without application being made for a permit, provided that: any such
Advertisements specified below shall be subject to the provisions of this Bylaw, all
other orders, Bylaws and regulations affecting such Advertisements.
301.

A-Frame signs, provided that:
302.
303.
304.
305.

The sign is limited to one (1) per business;
The sign is not illuminated;
The sign shall not contain Third Party Advertising;
The sign shall not obstruct pedestrian traffic in the
opinion of the Approving Authority;
306. The overall height shall not be greater than
1.22 metres (4 feet) above the Grade;
307. The maximum width of the sign shall not
exceed 0.92 metres (3 feet); and,
308. The sign shall not be placed on City owned property or a
Landscaped Boulevard; however, Sidewalks shall be exempted.
309.

Notwithstanding Subsections 306 and 307 above, within the Business
Revitalization Zone (BRZ), as shown in Schedule “C” attached to and forming part
of this Bylaw, the sign must be:
310. Of a height no greater than 0.92 metres (3 feet) above grade;
311. No wider than 0.61 metres (2 feet); and,
312. Placed as close to the building as possible.

313. Notices relating to the sale, lease or rental of the building or land on which they
are placed, provided that:
314. The notice shall not be illuminated;
315. Each notice shall not exceed 0.6m2 in residential areas. Where the
use on the property is an apartment dwelling with ten (10) or more
units, the notice shall not exceed 4.6m2. In commercial and
industrial districts, the notice shall not exceed 3.0 m2; and,
316. There shall be a limit of one (1) notice per property line with
frontage on a public road.
4. PROHIBITED SIGNS
400.

Unless otherwise allowed by Council, no Portable Sign shall be displayed
anywhere within the City which:

Bylaw 21/09

Page 5 of 15
401.

Involves the use of revolving lights or beacons or emits amplified
sounds or music;

402.

Will, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, block the natural light or
the view of an adjacent building;

403.

Will, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, obstruct free and clear
vision of vehicular traffic or may be confused with any authorized traffic
sign, signal or device;

404.

Is, in the opinion of the Approving Authority, vulgar, obscene, or would
be offensive to the public; and/or,

405.

Is illuminated and/or animated.

5. APPLICATION AND PERMITS
500.

504.

No Portable Sign shall be displayed or erected within the boundaries of the City,
except as permitted in Section 3 of this Bylaw, unless an application for the display
of the Portable Sign has been approved by the Approving Authority.
501.

A permit is required to relocate a Portable Sign as per Subsection 716;

502.

A permit is not required to clean, repaint or repair an existing Portable
Sign; and,

503.

A permit is not required to change copy on a Portable Sign provided no
other alterations or changes are made.

Application for a permit, pursuant to this Bylaw, shall be made out on the official
form, be accompanied by the fee prescribed by Council and provide the following
information:
505.

The legal description and civic address of the property, building or
structure upon or to which the Portable Sign is, or is to be displayed or
attached;

506.

The sign manufacturer’s name and address;

507.

The applicant’s name and address;

508.

A letter of authorization and/or a signature on the application form from
the Owner of the property or building, or an authorized agent;

509.

A site plan showing the proposed location of the Portable Sign in
relation to the property lines;

510.

Size and location of all existing Portable Signs on the property;

Bylaw 21/09

Page 6 of 15
511.

Whether the Portable Sign will be in one (1) permanent location or will
be moved from one (1) location to another from time to time; and,

512.

A scale drawing of the Portable Sign showing:
513.
All dimensions of the Portable Sign structure;
514.
The area of the copy face(s);
515.
The design of the copy face;
516.
The type of construction and finish to be utilized; and,
517.
The method of supporting or attaching the Portable Sign,
including structural and footing details.

518.

The Approving Authority shall issue a permit if, in their opinion, the application
complies with the provisions of this Bylaw and any other regulations to which the
proposed Portable Sign must comply.

519.

The Approving Authority may issue a permit subject to conditions.

520.

The Approving Authority may refuse a permit for any Portable Sign, if, in their
opinion:
521. The display of such Portable Sign would be contrary to the provisions
of this Bylaw;
522.

The information submitted regarding the Portable Sign is insufficient to
enable them to adequately rule on the application; and/or,

523.

The Portable Sign may interfere or otherwise obstruct traffic control
devices or in any way interfere with visibility of vehicular traffic.

524.

An annual permit is required for each Portable Sign and permit fees are due and
payable on or before December 31st of each year. A late payment fee will be added
to the prescribed fee set out in Schedule "A" hereto and forming part of this Bylaw
for each Portable Sign within the City to which the annual permit fee has not been
paid before January 31st of the current year.

525.

Every Portable Sign will be issued a yearly sticker to be attached to the Portable
Sign in a visible location once the applicable annual permit fees are paid. The
Licensee shall place the sticker on the corresponding Portable Sign.

526.

Should an annual permit be issued after June 30th, in any year, the new permit fee
shall be one-half of the appropriate annual permit fee.

527.

In the event of a Portable Sign being displayed before an annual permit has been
obtained, double the permit fee shall be charged as prescribed in Schedule “B”.

528.

No person shall display a Portable Sign differing from the approved information
within the approved permit. If, during the process of the work, the applicant desires
to deviate in any way from the terms of the original approved permit, they shall
notify the Approving Authority and submit amended drawings, and, if necessary,
shall make application for approval of the plans as amended.
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6. APPEAL PROCEDURE
600.

605.

An appeal may be lodged with Council by a person applying for a permit when the
Approving Authority:
601. Refuses to issue a permit;
602.

Fails to issue a permit within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of the
completed application;

603.

Issues a permit subject to conditions; and/or,

604.

Issues an order pursuant to this Bylaw.

An appeal to Council shall be lodged by serving a written notice of appeal to
Council through the Chief Administrative Officer within fourteen (14) days after:
606.

The person is notified of the order or decision or the issuance of the
permit; and/or,

607.

If no decision is made with respect to the application for a sign permit,
the fifteen (15) business day period referred to in Subsection 602
expires.

608.

Council may, when considering an appeal, confirm, revoke or vary the order,
decision or permit or any condition attached to any of them or make or substitute
an order, decision or permit of its own.

609.

Any complaints received regarding Portable Signs, from any person, other than
the Portable Sign Owner, will be forwarded to the Development Officer.

610.

The Development Officer shall review the complaint and make the determination
as to what, if anything, shall be done with the Portable Sign(s) that is the subject
of the complaint and shall notify the complainant in writing.

611.

Should the complainant disagree with the determination of the Development
Officer, the complainant may, in writing, request Council to consider an appeal of
the Development Officer’s determination.

612.

Council will consider each request and either allow or dismiss the appeal. If Council
allows the appeal, and upon hearing the appeal, it may confirm, reverse or vary
the decision of the Development Officer.

7. REGULATIONS
700. The provisions of this Bylaw shall apply to the issuance of permits or orders
respecting the display of any Portable Sign(s) within the boundaries of the City.
701.

On a commercial or industrial parcel, Portable Signs are limited to one
(1) per property or business, whether the Portable Sign is displaying
on-site business information or Third Party Advertising;
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702.

In addition to the provisions in Subsection 701, Community Event
Advertising is limited to one (1) per parcel;

703.

The area of the Portable Sign is not greater than 5.0 m2;

704.

The height of the Portable Sign does not exceed 2.5 metres (8.2 feet);

705.

No part of the Portable Sign shall project beyond the property line
unless written permission is obtained from the Approving Authority;

706.

A Portable Sign or sign structure shall not be located or extend
horizontally closer than 0.5 metres (1.6 feet) from the curb line;

707.

No Portable Sign shall be located within the Corner Visibility Triangle;

708.

The required distance from overhead power and service lines as set
forth in provincial regulations shall be maintained for all Portable Signs;

709.

All Portable Signs shall be maintained in a satisfactory manner. All
Portable Sign Area, background and copy shall be continuously
maintained in clean, readable condition. There shall be no danger from
structural members or fixtures;

710.

A Portable Sign shall not obstruct door openings, passageways,
walkways or fire escapes;

711.

All Portable Signs shall be designed and constructed in accordance with
good engineering practice and in conformity with the requirements of
this Bylaw and Alberta Safety Codes Regulations wherever applicable;

712.

No Portable Sign or sign support shall be placed on a property unless
the landowner or his representative has granted permission to do so;
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713.

Portable Signs shall not be permitted on City owned property or a
Landscaped Boulevard, with the exception of:
714.

715.

The JBS Canada Centre (323 1st Street East, legally described
as Plan 3230AM, Block D) for the duration of special events
or programs held on the property. Such signs shall be
removed within seventy-two (72) hours following the special
event or program; or,
Signs containing information regarding City events and
programs. Such signs shall be removed within seventy-two
(72) hours following the cessation of the special event or
program.

716.

If a Portable Sign is to be moved to a new location, the Development
Officer must be informed in writing. The sign owner shall not move the
sign to a new location without approval from the Development Officer;
and,

717.

Notwithstanding Subsection 716, an Authorized Sign Distributor may
relocate a Portable Sign without providing notice to the Development
Officer, provided that the Authorized Sign Distributor has purchased the
required number of permits and all other provisions of this Bylaw are
adhered to.

8. VARIANCES
800.

Where there are requests for minor variances, the Development Officer shall have
the authority to approve such requests. Minor variances are defined as:
801.

Any application from a lessee, in good standing with the City, that is
applying to place a Portable Sign on the portion of City owned property
that they lease; or,

802. Any application for a non-profit special event, where:
803.
The event is being held on City owned property;
804.
There is a valid special event permit for the event, as per
Bylaw 14/03, as may be amended or replaced from time to
time; and,
805.
The Portable Sign will be placed on City owned property
where the event is being held; or,
806.

Any application to have directional signage placed on City owned
property or a Landscaped Boulevard, for a non-profit special event
being held on City owned property, the Silversage Agribition Grounds
or Kinsmen Rodeo Grounds, provided that the Portable Sign(s) shall:
807.
not exceed two (2) in quantity;
808.
not be installed sooner than two (2) weeks prior to the event;
and,
809.
be removed seventy-two (72) hours after the event.

Bylaw 21/09

Page 10 of 15
810.

811.

Any application, where in the opinion of the Development Officer, the
variance conforms with the intent of the Bylaw and has no material
impact.

Requests outside the parameters defined in Subsections 801 – 810 shall be
considered major variances and Council may consider such requests, according
to the merits of each case.

9. REMOVAL OR REPAIR OF SIGNS
900.

If any Portable Sign is erected without an approved permit, an approved permit
lapses, a Portable Sign no longer complies with the terms of this Bylaw or a
Portable Sign no longer complies with the terms of an approved permit, the
Approving Authority may issue an order directing the Owner to remove, repair or
modify the Portable Sign and the party or parties so ordered shall:
901.

Remove, repair or modify such Portable Sign and all related structural
components in accordance with the terms of the order within fifteen (15)
days from the date of receipt of such notice from the Approving
Authority; and,

902.

Restore the immediate area around the Portable Sign, to the
satisfaction of the Approving Authority, including the ground or any
building to which the Portable Sign was attached, as close as possible
to its original form prior to the installation of the Portable Sign.

903.

If a person or party fails or refuses to comply with an order issued by the
Approving Authority pursuant to the terms of this Bylaw, the Approving Authority,
or person appointed by the Approving Authority, may enter on the land or
premises and take any action necessary to carry out the order. Where the
Approving Authority or a person appointed by it carries out an order, the costs
and expenses incurred by the City in carrying out the order shall be a debt due
and owing to the City by the person or party to whom the notice was given and in
the case where the notice is given to an Owner of the land and premises on which
the Portable Sign is located, Council may cause the costs and expenses incurred
in carrying out the order to be placed on the tax roll as an additional tax against
the property concerned and the amount shall be collected in the same manner
as taxes on land.

904.

In the event the Portable Sign is removed by an agent of the City, the Portable
Sign will not be released to the Owner until a valid Portable Sign permit can be
obtained and the assigned penalties as prescribed in Schedule “B” have been
paid. Should the Portable Sign remain unclaimed by the Owner for a period of
six (6) months; the Portable Sign may be sold or destroyed.

10. PENALTIES AND OFFENCES:
1000.

Any person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw is guilty of an offence
and shall pay a specified penalty as outlined in Schedule “B” attached.
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Any person designated as an Authorized Sign Distributor may have their
designation revoked by Council if the Authorized Sign Distributor contravenes
any provisions of this Bylaw.

11. ENFORCEMENT:
1100.

A Peace Officer is for the purposes of enforcement of this Bylaw, a Designated
Officer of the City.

1101.

Any person who breaches any provision of the Bylaw is guilty of an offence and
liable:
1102. upon the issuance of a Violation Tag to the specified penalty as listed
on Schedule “B” attached to and forming part of this Bylaw; or,
1103. upon summary conviction to a fine of not less than the amount specified
on Schedule “B” attached to and forming part of this Bylaw for each
offence, exclusive of costs.

1104.

A Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a Violation Tag to
any person who has contravened any provision of this Bylaw.

1105.

A Violation Tag shall be deemed to be sufficiently served if:
1106. served personally on the accused; or,
1107. mailed to the address of the registered Owner of the property
concerned or to the person concerned; or,
1108. served personally upon the manager, secretary, receptionist or other
officer or person apparently in charge at any premises of a licensee
accused, or by mailing a copy to such licensee by registered mail.

1109.

A Violation Tag shall state:
1110. the name of the Person;
1111. the municipal or legal description of the land on or near where the
offence took place;
1112. the offence;
1113. the penalty for the offence set out on Schedule “B” of this Bylaw;
1114. that the penalty shall be paid within fourteen (14) days from the
issuance of the Violation Tag; and,
1115. any other information deemed necessary by the Chief Administrative
Officer or by the provisions of the Act or the Provincial Offences
Procedure Act, RSA 2000, c P-34 as amended.
1116. Where a breach of this Bylaw is of a continuing nature, further Violation
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Tags may be issued by a Peace Officer and the offender shall be
subject to a penalty for each subsequent offence as outlined in
Schedule “B”.
1117. Where a Violation Tag has been issued for breach of any provision of
this Bylaw, the Person to whom the Violation Tag is issued may, in lieu
of being prosecuted for the offence, pay to the City the penalty specified
on the Violation Tag.
1118. Nothing in the Bylaw shall prevent a Peace Officer from immediately
issuing a Violation Ticket.
1119. If a person upon whom a Violation Tag is served above fails to pay the
voluntary payment within the time specified, a Peace Officer is hereby
authorized and empowered to issue a Violation Ticket pursuant to Part
II of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, RSA 2000, c P-34, as
amended, or as repealed and replaced from time to time.
1120. Any person who is guilty by way of summary conviction of an offense
under the provisions of this Bylaw shall be liable for a fine of not less
than the amount specified for that particular breach of this Bylaw, plus
associated court costs pursuant to Part II of the Provincial Offences
Procedure Act, RSA 2000, c P-34, as amended, or as repealed from
time to time.

12. SEVERABILITY:
1200.

It is the intention of Council that each separate provision of this Bylaw shall be
deemed independent of all other provisions herein and it is the further intention
of Council that if any provision of this Bylaw is declared invalid, all other provisions
herein shall remain valid and enforceable.

13. REPEAL OF BYLAW
1300.

That Bylaw 12/28, 13/09, 15/11, 16/11 and 16/12, 20/04 and amendments thereto
be hereby repealed.

14. EFFECTIVE DATE:
1400.

This Bylaw shall come into force and take effect on the date of final passing.
Read a first time this _____ day of _________, 2021.
Read a second time this _____ day of __________, 2021.
Read a third time and finally passed this _____ day of ___________, 2021.
Mayor
Chief Administrative Officer
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BYLAW NO. 21/09
SCHEDULE "A"
PORTABLE SIGN PERMIT FEES
1.

Portable Signs

$80.00/year

2.

Portable Signs for registered not-for-profit organizations

$40.00/year

3.

Renewal - Late Payment Fee (As per Subsection 524)

$50.00
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BYLAW NO. 21/09
SCHEDULE “B”
SPECIFIED PENALTIES

Bylaw
Subsection:

Offence Description:

Penalty:

527

Failure to hold a valid Portable Sign permit
before placement of the Portable Sign

Double the Permit Fee

1101

Contravention of this Bylaw

$200.00
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BYLAW NO. 21/09
SCHEDULE “C”
BUSINESS REVITALIZATION ZONE

